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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Capital VC
Limited (carrying on business in Hong Kong as CNI VC Limited)
(formerly known as Sino Katalytics Investment Corporation) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), it is my pleasure to present
you the Group’s audited annual results for the year ended 30 June
2010 (the “Year”).

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

During the year under review, the Group recorded a turnover
of HK$21,201,261 (2009: negative HK$5,550,573) and net profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$35,970,191
(2009 restated: loss of HK$2,352,846). During the Year, the Group
began to diversify our investment portfolio and re-allocated our
financial resources to several more matured stage investments as
well as expanding to other new potential areas with better liquidity.

The net asset value (“NAV”) of the Group as at 30 June 2010 was
HK$317,398,875 (2009 restated: HK$261,937,198), representing an
increase of 21.17% over the same period last year.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

In the wake of the global financial crisis, governments all have
rapidly implemented various responsive measures, leading to
gradual economic recovery around the world. Suffering from lesser
impact from the crisis, China has remained its sustainable growth in
economy. The stabilizing economic policies adopted by the Chinese
government have further strengthened the investors’ confidence.
Backed by motherland and taking advantages of many favourable
factors, Hong Kong has experienced influx of funds, resulting in
boom in the stock market. Despite modest fluctuations, the year
ended 30 June 2010 saw a gain of more than 1,900 points in the
Hang Seng Index with active trading.

During the year ended 30 June 2010, the Group has actively
adjusted its investment strategy succeeded in turning from loss
to profit and bringing encouraging results to its shareholders.
Considering the flexibility of the investment and developments in
financial markets, the Group has been involved in reorganizing
investment priorities, dedicated more resources and attention on
our listed equities portfolio in Hong Kong in the first half of this
fiscal year. In addition, the Group also systematically reduced the
financing activities on new private equity investments.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT #i{fES#HsE A "

by gl

To enhance our capital and shareholder bases, improve the AERRARRRER RBRAQXTIARFHRS
Group’s competitiveness as well as participate in diversified high BZr{tWEEEE  NERR-_ZEEALE+-A
quality projects, the Group obtained net proceeds of approximately BERS - FTERRIEFEELN11,970,000/8 T - BB
HK$11.97 million from a placing exercise in December 2009. With iEEe  AEEKFEETPEELEEUEHER
the injection of new capital, the Group will continue to make more EFARENHRE RIBEBIRRHEERNSE
sizeable new investments with attractive returns particularly in the BLEMESIN AETERETEBNERESRSE
PRC. Apart from listed securities in Hong Kong, the Group has EHEERAASNEBGTE  SBEERPEXAER
also planned to use the proceeds on sunrise industries including URRREREREES -
projects related to China natural resources and green energy which
has broad prospects and is actively promoted by the Chinese
government.

In order to bolster the corporate image and to match our further ATRARAZEEER  KXATERZ=Z—
development, the Company has changed its name from “Sino ZFMNA—HEERER HIERPFERERR
Katalytics Investment Corporation” to “Capital VC Limited” with AT METEHABRERAT ] UBESAAITIW
effect from 1 April 2010. BRE -

Looking forward, we expect that global economy will remain on BEXRNK  AEEEYPERETEES LE &
a solid upward trend, and the Hong Kong stock market will remain BETENARNET  -BZERAEEEEEBRRTH
bullish in the foreseeable future. Riding on the wealth of experience REBTENEELR  AEEHRREBED
of our management team in China and local markets, we are full TEEH—WBRE KRAOBEHREAESTZEESR
of confidence for the future. We will persistently promote our HEE FAR BAAEELAGREREEREE
portfolio companies to perform to their full potential. Meanwhile, B -HBEEREEERZEDR  AEETKES
with our ability in sourcing quality deals, mobilizing management BRREGTE EBSRESEBEIZERKLE UHEE
and employing operations resources, the Group will also pursue LBREASG  UBXBREAESERANNGE  BR
business opportunities with high potential and continue to optimize REEFELEEMNER -
the investment portfolio so as to enhance the efficiency of capital
utilization massively, and tapping more fruitful returns for our
shareholders.

APPRECIATION us

The Board would like to take this opportunity to express our EESEEANMKENEEEBAEBREINS
gratitude to all management team and staff members for their E—FE 2R IRIEHRBHEHUTORSE » FELE
dedication and contribution in the past year. We would also like to BREREBEHFEERAEE 2RI XEREEGEHE -
extend our sincere thanks and appreciation to our shareholders and
business partners for their continued support to as well as their
confidence in the Group.

Yau Chung Hong HITEE
Executive Director E&R/
Hong Kong, 27 September 2010 BB —E-FEFAA=-1+tH
9
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS E=Z=ERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yau Chung Hong, aged 40, obtained a Bachelor degree
in Accountancy from Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr.Yau possesses extensive experience and
knowledge in accounting and financial management. Mr.Yau is also
an independent non-executive director of China Zenith Chemical
Group Limited and Royale Furniture Holdings Limited, the securities
of both of which are listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Chui Tak Keung, Duncan, aged 41, holds a Bachelor of
Science degree (Applied and Engineering Physics) and a Master
of Engineering degree (Operations Research and Industrial
Engineering) from Cornell University respectively. Mr. Chui is an
experienced investor and business manager for direct investment
and private equity ventures in Asia. He previously held positions
at management consulting firms, Andersen Consulting and A.T.
Kearney, as well as a venture capital firm, Transpac Capital Group,
which focused on private equity investments in Asia, where Mr. Chui
specialised on the consumer products, hospitality industry, as well
as telecommunications, media and technology sectors. Mr. Chui
is also an executive director and the CEO of China Private Equity
Investment Holdings Limited, whose securities are listed on AIM
board of the London Stock Exchange.

Mr. Kong Fanpeng, aged 42, obtained a Bachelor’'s degree
in Finance and Auditing from Zhongshan University, the PRC. Mr.
Kong was a manager of Huizhou TCL Information System Limited
and Guangzhou Bada Telecommunications Limited. He also worked
as the general manager of the PRC market and an executive director
respectively at Chief Securities Limited in Hong Kong and Excalibur
Securities Limited in Hong Kong, specializing in risk averse
arbitrage trading in both Shenzhen and Hong Kong capital market.
Mr. Kong has a wealth of experience in the Hong Kong securities
market for over 10 years and is well versed in investment in the
second board market. Mr. Kong is currently the chairman and an
executive director of Shenzhen Wansheng Investment Management
Company Limited.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS E=Z=ERE \

Dr. Liu Ta-pei, aged 59, graduated from Chung-Hsing University
in Taiwan. After graduation, he continued his studies in Cheng-Chi
University, Taiwan and the University of Southern California, U.S.A.
and obtained Master of Science and MBA degrees respectively. He
was then conferred his Doctoral degree in public administration from
the University of La Verne, U.S.A. Apart from his strong educational
background, Dr. Liu has been active in the financial field for more
than 20 years. He had been the director respectively of Universal
Chinese Securities Finance Co. Ltd., Chung-Hsin Bill Co. Ltd., and
Central Investment Holding Company and the chairman of Jen Hua
Investment Holding Company. Dr. Liu had also served as CEO of
Taiwan KMT (Ruling Party) Business Investment Committee and
had served the board of China Development Industry Bank, one of
the top management of Taiwan’s largest Investment Banks. Dr. Liu
had been the CEO and an executive director of the Core Pacific-
Yamaichi Group. Because of his outstanding contribution in the
financial field, Dr. Liu was granted the honour of ‘Golden Peak
Award of Outstanding Corporation Leaders in Taiwan’ in 1998, and
was ranked as one of the ‘Top Ten Intelligent Financial Personnel in
Greater China’ and was conferred the ‘Best Integrity Award’ in 2008.
Dr. Liu is a non-executive director of Rocklands Richfield Limited, a
company listed on the Australian Stock Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Kwan, aged 41, obtained a Bachelor degree in
Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a
practicing Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong, a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr.
Lam is currently a director of Charles H.C. Cheung & CPA Limited.

Mr. Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan, aged 38, graduated from
the University of New South Wales, Australia with a Bachelor of
Commerce degree in Accounting and Computer Information System.
He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of Certified Public Accountants,
Australia. Mr. Chan is currently an associate director of Go-To-
Asia Investment Limited. Mr. Chan is also an independent non-
executive director of Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company
Limited, whose securities are listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and of China Data Broadcasting
Holdings Limited, whose securities are listed on the GEM board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS E=Z=ERE

Mr. Shiu Siu Tao, aged 47, obtained a postgraduate degree
in finance from the HEC School of Management (Hautes Etudes
Commeciales) in Paris, France and a bachelor of business
administration degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Shiu has close to 20 years of experience in the corporate finance
field that covers a wide array of industries. He is currently Managing
Director of ECM Department at China Merchants Securities (Hong
Kong) Company Limited.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEE®EDH e

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group reported a turnover
of HK$21,201,261 (2009: negative HK$5,550,573) and net profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$35,970,191
(2009 restated: loss of HK$2,352,846). During the year, the Group
managed to dispose of some direct investment projects and re-
allocate our financial resources to our listed equities portfolio as
well as several more matured technology investments.

As at 30 June 2010, the net assets value (“NAV”) of the Group
was HK$317,398,875 (2009: HK$261,937,198), an increase of 21.17%
over the same period in 2009. The NAV per share of the Group was
HK$1.0074 (2009 restated: HK$1.0160).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group continued to maintain a healthy statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2010. The Group’s bank balances
amounted to HK$26,219,940 (2009: HK$1,639,410) which accounted
for 10.60% (2009: 0.82%) of the Group’s total current assets. The
Board believes that the Group has sufficient resources to satisfy its
working capital requirements.

Capital Structure

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders in
an extraordinary general meeting held on 2 October 2009,
the authorised share capital of the Company was increased
from HK$100,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 shares to
HK$200,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000 shares.

Following a placing exercise, 51,560,000 shares were allotted
and issued at HK$0.24 each on 19 December 2009, and following an
share option exercise, 5,700,000 shares were allotted and issued at
HK$0.43 each on 19 May 2010, making the total number of issued
shares to 315,082,177.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEE#®IDH

Capital Commitment and Contingent Liabilities
As at 30 June 2010, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities and no capital commitment (2009: nil).

Foreign Currency Fluctuation

The Group has a number of investment projects in the PRC and
may be subjected to a certain degree of investment return risk. In
spite of this, the Board believes that foreign exchange risks are
minimal as the Group mainly uses Hong Kong dollars to carry out its
business transactions.

Human Resources

As at 30 June 2010, the Group had 2 employees excluding
directors. Total staff costs excluding directors’ remuneration
amounted to HK$705,388 (2009: HK$1,057,714). They perform
clerical, research, business development and administrative
functions for the Group. The Group’s policies are in line with the
prevailing market practice and are determined on the basis of the
performance and experience of individual employees.

Significant Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries

During the year under review, the Group has not made any
significant acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEs

Charge of Assets

As at 30 June 2010, the Group had pledged the following assets
to secure the finance leases, debenture issued by the Company and

EEEA

REZZ-Z2FXRA=1TH FEEERAUTE
EFBERYN  FRAFBT2EEERENHRE

the margin payables: MEZEFR
2010 2009
—E-%F —ETNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Plant and equipment BERZE 451,269 1,544,440
Available-for-sale investments HEERE - 57,992,368
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBERUBREECUBEE 56,632,226 15,694,078
57,083,495 75,230,886
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT {X&EA%

The board of directors (“Board”) is committed to maintaining
statutory and regulatory standards and adherence to the principles
of corporate governance with emphasis on transparency,
independence, accountability and responsibility. The Board reviews
its corporate governance practices from time to time in order to meet
the rising expectations of shareholders and comply with increasingly
stringent regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to
excellence in corporate governance.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“Code”) issued
by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) in
its Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”) sets out two levels of corporate governance
practices, namely, mandatory Code provisions that a listed company
must comply with or explain its non-compliance, and recommended
best practices that listed companies are encouraged to comply with
but need not disclose in the case of non-compliance. The Company
is in compliance with the mandatory Code provisions, save for the
deviations discussed below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the

Company and its shareholders.

At the date of this report, the Board comprises four Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Board has appointed Committees to oversee different areas of
the Company’s affairs. The composition of the Board and the
Committees are given below and their respective responsibilities are
discussed in this report.

The number of Board Meetings and Committee Meetings
attended by each Director during the year under review is set out in
the following table. Figure in brackets indicates maximum number of
meetings in the period in which the individual was a Board Member
or Committee Member (as the case may be).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Name of Director Note
EEHSR Mt
Executive Directors BTES

Mr. Chui Tak Keung, Duncan ®hERELE

Mr. Yau Chung Hong FERMEE

Mr.Chow Ka Wo, Alex BRMEE 1
Mr. Kong Fanpeng LA EE 2
Dr. Liu Ta-pei ZREBL 3
Non-executive Director FHITES

Mr. Ma Kwok Keung, Kenneth BE®REE 4
Independent Non-executive Directors B Y EHITESE

Mr. Lam Kwan mOBEEAE

Mr. Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan BREEEEE 4

Mr. Shiu Siu Tao BOBELE

Note:

1. Resigned on 31 March 2010

2. Appointed on 18 March 2010.

3. Appointed on 17 May 2010.

4. Retired on 26 November 2009.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other. Each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors have confirmed in writing their
independence from the Company in accordance with the guidelines
on director independence of the Listing Rules. On this basis, the

Company considers all such Directors to be independent.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company as at
the date of this report are set out on page 6 and page 8 of this
annual report. Given the composition of the Board and the skills,
knowledge and expertise of the Directors, the Board believes that it
is appropriately structured to provide sufficient checks and balances
to protect the interests of the Group and the shareholders. The
Board will review its composition regularly to ensure that it has the
appropriate balance of expertise, skills and experience to continue
to effectively oversee the business of the Company.
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The Directors are remunerated with reference to their respective
duties and responsibility with the Company, the Company’s
performance and current market situation. Details of emoluments of
the Directors from the Group for the year are disclosed in note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The appointment of new Directors is recommended by the Board
of Directors. The Board will then take into account criteria such as
expertise, experience, integrity and commitment when considering a

new appointment.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company
(“Articles”), all Directors except the Chairman and/or Managing
Director are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
annual general meetings of the Company. New Directors appointed
by the Board during the year are required to retire and submit
themselves for re-election at the first annual general meeting
immediately following their appointments. Further, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors excluding the Chairman
and/or Managing Director, or, if their number is not a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not exceeding one-third are
required to retire from office.

The existing Articles governing the retirement of Directors
deviate from the Code provisions in the following aspects: (i) unlike
the other Directors, the Chairman and/or Managing Director is not
subject to retirement by rotation; (ii) new Directors appointed at
the first annual general meeting instead of the first general meeting
after their appointments; and (iii) the Directors who are subject to
retirement by rotation are not explicitly subject to retirement at least
once every three years.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same person. The Company had a Chairman until 18
March 2010 but had no Chief Executive, and decisions are made
collectively by the Executive Directors. The Board believes that the
present arrangement enables the Company to make and implement
decisions promptly, and thus achieve the Company’s objectives
efficiently and effectively in response to the changing environment.
The Board also believes that the Company already has a strong
corporate governance structure in place to ensure effective
oversight of management. The Board will continually review the
effectiveness of the Group’s are necessary.

TERM OF OFFICE OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 requires that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.
Currently all Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) have no specific term of appointment but they
are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles.
As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to serve the purpose of this Code provision.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises all three Independent Non-
executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Lam Kwan, who possesses
extensive financial and accounting experience in commercial
sectors. It is responsible for appointment of external auditors, review
of the Group’s financial information and oversight of the Group’s
financial reporting system and internal control procedures. The
Committee is also responsible for reviewing the interim and final
results of the Group prior to recommending them to the Board for
approval. It meets regularly to review financial reporting and internal
control matters and to this end has unrestricted access to personnel,
records and external auditors and senior management.

The Committee has specific written terms of reference which are
of no less exacting terms than those stipulated in Code Provision.
In the year under review, the Audit Committee held two meetings.
At the meetings, it reviewed the final results for the year ended
30 June 2009 and the interim accounts for the six months ended
31 December 2009 respectively and the internal control structure.
It also reviewed the Company’s progress in implementing the
corporate governance requirements as set out in the Code.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee, comprised all three Independent
Non-executive Directors, is responsible for reviewing and
determining the compensation and benefits of the Directors and
senior management. The committee members elect one of them to

take the chair at the commencement of each meeting.

The Committee has specific written terms of reference which are
of no less exacting terms than those stipulated in Code Provision.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring such
accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the results and cash flow for that period. The Company’s
accounts are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
are responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are
selected and applied consistently; and that judgments and estimates
made are prudent and reasonable.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system of the Group. The Group’s
system of internal control includes a defined management structure
with limits of authority, safeguard its assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for internal
use or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant laws
and regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to oversee
the Group’s operational systems for the achievement of the Group’s
business objectives.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company appointed Cheng & Cheng Limited as auditor
of the Company on 8 September 2009 following the resignation
of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited on 1 September 2009. In the
year ended 30 June 2010, total remuneration paid to the auditors
was HK$520,000 (2009: HK$420,000), being HK$420,000 (2009:
HK$420,000) for audit and HK$100,000 (2009: nil) for other

professional service.
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The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on page 25 and page 26.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Company has made
specific enquiry to all Directors regarding any non-compliance with
the Model Code during the year and they all confirmed that they
have fully complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company attaches great priority to establishing effective
communications with its shareholders and investors. In an effort to
enhance such communications, the Company provides information
relating to the Company and its business in its interim and annual
reports.

The Company regards its annual general meeting as an
opportunity for direct communications between the Board and
its shareholders. All Directors, senior management and external
auditors make an effort to attend the annual general meeting to
address shareholders’ queries. The Company also responds to
requests for information and queries from the shareholders and
investors and welcomes the views of shareholders on matters
affecting the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the
Board or management direct.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EZg#Hm#&

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are pleased to
present the annual report and the audited financial statements of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 30 June 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investing in listed and
unlisted companies mainly in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”). The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at an extraordinary general meeting held on 31
March 2010 for the change of company name and the approval by
the Registrar of Companies in the Cayman Islands on 1 April 2010,
the name of the Company has been changed from “Sino Katalytics
Investment CorporationEZHEHEREHFPR A R]” to “Capital VC Limited
H# AR BMRAT”. The name “Capital VC Limited (carrying on
business in Hong Kong as CNI VC Limited)” has been approved by
the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong on 7 June 2010.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2010 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 27 to 103. The
Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2010.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 30 June 2010
amounted to HK$175,670,342 (2009: HK$157,752,804), calculated in
accordance with the laws of the Cayman Islands.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY MHERE
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the AEEBETBAMRFECXENEEHEERE
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited ZHE (HBZERERMBERRELEH 2B U
financial statements and reclassified as appropriate to conform with ERFEZENAER) HNE104E -

current year’s presentation, is set out on page 104.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF BE - HEIBREES
SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, KAATREEAMBLARARERAMEEE - B
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the EREHERATEMETES
year.
SHARE OPTIONS B AR

The details of the share option scheme adopted by the Company AARRZBEE=FAA=Z+HERMZBEBRE
on 30 September 2003 are set out in note 31 to the consolidated HERRGE MR KRMEES -

financial statements.
During the year, movements in the number of options which FEARTFHEQLDEIRREEH-ENER
have been granted to certain employees of an associate and service EHEEHUT

providers are as follows.

Number of Options

BREHE
Granted Exercised Lapsed
Date of Held at during during during Held at Exercise Exercise
Grantee grant 1 July 2009 the year the year the year 30 June 2010 price (HK$) period
RZZBRE R-B-Bf
BEA RHB® +tA-BRF FERRH EERTE FEAXRNM AAZ+ARE TEEGER) gd
Employees 4 May 2010 - 5,700,000 5,700,000 - - 0.430 4 May 2010 -
and service —E-EF 3 May 2013
providers TAMA —E-Ef
(in aggregate) LTAMABEZE
EIRBRBREMLEE —E2-=f
(#5h) IA=H
18 May 2010 - 5,700,000 - - 5,700,000 0.480 18 May 2010 -
—E-BE 17 May 2013
ZATAH —z_36
EATNRZE
—E-=f
TAt+tR
26 May 2010 - 7,600,000 - - 7,600,000 0.422 26 May 2010 -
“E-Ef 25 May 2013
TA=t5AH —Z-ZF
EA=t+XRAE
saetan 19
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DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yau Chung Hong

Mr. Chui Tak Keung, Duncan

Mr. Chow Ka Wo, Alex (resigned on 31 March 2010)
Mr. Kong Fanpeng (appointed on 18 March 2010)
Dr. Liu Ta-pei (appointed on 17 May 2010)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Ma Kwok Keung, Kenneth (retired on 26 November 2009)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Kwan

Mr. Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan

Mr. Shiu Siu Tao

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr. Kong Fanpeng
and Dr. Liu Ta-pei shall retire in accordance with Article 87(3) of
the Company’s articles of association, while Mr. Chui Tak Keung,
Duncan shall retire by rotation in accordance with Article 88(1). All
of them being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election thereat.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

As at 30 June 2010, none of the Directors have entered into
any service agreement with any member of the Group which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Saved as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, existed at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN EQUITY SECURITIES
As at 30 June 2010, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) (including interests or short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules (collectively
“Discloseable Interests or Short Positions”), were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Yau Chung Hong (Note) i8R (B )

Note: Mr. Yau Chung Hong, an executive director of the Company, was
personally interested in 18,570,000 shares and deemed to be
interested in 400,000 shares by virtue of his control in Sellwell

Enterprise Limited.
Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the chief

executive of the Company had or were deemed to have any
Discloseable Interests or Short Position as at 30 June 2010.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 June 2010, the substantial shareholders (other than
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company) which had
interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO, or to be disclosed to the Company under
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, were as
follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Cheuk Wai Yin 2EE
DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director, the chief executive or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights
exercised by them; nor was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The following contracts (not being contracts in the ordinary
course of business) were entered into by the Company during the
year, which are or may be material:

1. A placing agreement was made between the Company
and VC Brokerage Limited on 12 October 2009 for placing
100,000,000 new shares of the Company under a specific
mandate at a placing price of HK$0.30 per share. The
agreement lapsed on 27 October 2009 since some conditions
precedent were not fulfilled.

2. A placing agreement was made between the Company and
Kingston Securities Limited on 27 November 2009 for placing
51,560,000 new shares of the Company at a placing price of
HK$0.24 per share.

Save as disclosed, no other material contract (not being contract
entered into in the ordinary course of business) was entered into by
any member of the Group during the year.

LITIGATION

As at 30 June 2010, none of the members of the Group is
engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and no
litigation or claim of material importance is known to the Directors or
the Company to be pending or threatened by or against any member
of the Group.

RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party and connected transactions of the Group
during the year are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EZg#Hm#&

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors
confirmed that at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Details of subsequent events of the Group are set out in note 39
to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
have been audited by Cheng & Cheng Limited. Cheng & Cheng
Limited was appointed on 8 September 2009 as the auditor of the
Company to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited and hold office until the conclusion
of the forthcoming AGM. Cheng & Cheng Limited retires and,
being eligible, offers itself for reappointment. A resolution for
reappointment of Cheng & Cheng Limited as auditor of the Company
is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Chui Tak Keung, Duncan
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 September 2010
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CHENG & CHENG LIMITED

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
wmow o out moE B A R A A

10/F, Allied Kajima Building,
138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BRETETITB138FBAERANE10E

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CAPITAL VC LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS SINO KATALYTICS INVESTMENT
CORPORATION)

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and
carrying on business in Hong Kong as CNI VC Limited)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Capital
VC Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 27 to 103 which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2010, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibilities for the consolidated
financial statements

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ®BM#%EAERE

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 June 2010
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Cheng & Cheng Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Li Wing Sum Steven

Practising Certificate Number: P03747

Hong Kong, 27 September 2010
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT #HeWmk \
For the year ended 30 June 2010 #E—Z—24<A=+A L FE =
2010 2009
—E-EfF —EETAF
Notes HK$ HK$
it BT BT
(Restated)
(E%)
Turnover —E - 7 21,201,261 (5,550,573)
Other income Hib A 9 4,594,212 2,681,278
Administrative expenses THEHR (12,360,234) (12,445,054)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised 5] 438 L i & UK R IE
in respect of other receivables ZEEEE 21 2,500,000 1,300,000
Net loss on disposal of HEAHEE
available-for-sale investments REZER (2,581,220) -
Operating profit (loss) EERER (E8) 13,354,019 (14,014,349)
Finance costs BE AR 10 (2,135,301) (2,127,863)
Share of results of an associate BB E N EE 17 24,290,040 13,789,366
Profit (loss) before tax BB &R (B518) 11 35,508,758 (2,352,846)
Income tax IEET 12 461,433 =
Profit (loss) for the year KEEEF (EE) 35,970,191 (2,352,846)
Dividend g 13 - =
Earnings (losses) per share — basic BREF (BFE) &R 14 0.1256 (0.0123)
- diluted — 8 N/ATER N/ATER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #&2EKRER

For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

2010 2009
—E-EfF —ZEEhEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(E3%1)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to AATREREREEN
equity holders of the Company RKEEFRF (FE) 35,970,191 (2,352,846)
Other comprehensive income (loss) Hit2mEWK = (B518)
Gain (loss) on fair value changes of AMHEREZ
available-for-sale investments ARELEWE (B5E) 1,309,519 (12,541,069)
Transfer from investment revaluation REETHEE
reserve on disposal of REBBKRE
available-for-sale investments BEhfHEEEA 2,581,220 =
Other comprehensive income MBI B2 RNEE
(loss) for the year, net of tax Hit2mEE (B18) 3,890,739 (12,541,069)
Total comprehensive income AA TR IR R B 4L
(loss) for the year attributable to AEEZEBE
equity holders of the Company (F18) %% 39,860,930 (14,893,915)

CAPITAL VC LIMITED # #B &I # A BR 2 #]
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™ A v o ; il
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION &Z&##itnEk - _-‘_,
At 30 June 2010 R=Z—ZFXA=+H oy ¥
2010 2009 2008
—E-E2F CZEEZAF —EENE
Notes HK$ HK$ HK$
KraF BT BT BT
(Restated)
(E5)
Non-current assets EREBEE
Plant and equipment B E R & 16 987,277 2,427,110 3,350,491
Interest in an associate REEE DR 2R 17 49,338,592 25,048,552 11,259,186
Loan receivables AL EE] 18 - = 10,000,000
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 19 58,249,017 57,992,368 97,492,972
108,574,886 85,468,030 122,102,649
Current assets REEE
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 19 63,056,070 118,003,200 71,043,665
Financial assets at fair value BRARBERRERAEE
through profit or loss ZHBEE 20 56,632,226 15,694,078 24,484,446
Loan receivables W& RRIE 18 10,000,000 10,000,000 =
Prepayments, deposits and other FEARE - - RekHEA
receivables FE U FhE 21 58,948,774 8,767,406 3,228,165
Amounts due from investee EWEZRENTRIE
companies 22 2,313,060 10,255,191 14,944,723
Amounts due from FEUN BAIE A B FRIE
related companies 23 - 13,850 13,400
Amount due from an associate FE Uk B & N B FRIE 17 30,220,000 35,063,500 19,378,500
Bank balances RITHER 24 26,219,940 1,639,410 7,689,941
247,390,070 199,436,635 140,782,840
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables and accruals HihETRIEREFTEH 25 35,384,873 9,118,717 16,992,516
Amounts due to directors EAEERE 26 1,101,884 149,258 634,835
Amounts due to related companies FESEEQTRE 27 - 310,380 1,465,873
Tax payable A 568,702 1,030,134 1,030,134
Debentures EREE 28 1,000,000 11,000,000 10,000,000
Obligations under finance leases A& A AR
— due within one year ——F R H 29 452,906 818,566 779,564
38,508,365 22,427,055 30,902,922
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 30 June 2010 R=ZF—ZF < A=+H

FEMBRRE

2010 2009 2008
—E-TF C—EZTAFE Z—EBENE
Notes HK$ HK$ HK$
=4 BT BT BT
(Restated)
(E231)
Net current assets REBEEFE 208,881,705 177,009,580 109,879,918
317,456,591 262,477,610 231,982,567
Capital and reserves BEARR#EE
Share capital &N 30 31,508,218 25,782,218 12,323,454
Reserves #E 285,890,657 236,154,980 218,546,960
Total equity attributable to KRB RERFE AEL
equity holders of the Company R 317,398,875 261,937,198 230,870,414
Non-current liability FREBEE
Obligations under finance leases Al E A A
— due after one year ——F %37 H 29 57,716 540,412 1,112,153
317,456,591 262,477,610 231,982,567
Net asset value per share BREEFE 32 1.0074 1.0160 0.1882

The consolidated financial statements on pages 27 to 103 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27

September 2010 and are signed on its behalf by:

Yau Chung Hong

a8

Director

EF

CAPITAL VC LIMITED # #B &I # A BR 2 #]
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Chui Tak Keung, Duncan

Director

EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #%ZagzZFx

For the year ended 30 June 2010 B2 —Z—ZF <A=THIFE R
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FARRERE AEGER
Share Investment
Share Share option revaluation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
e ROEE BRERE REERHE  RHEAR o
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
At 1 July 2008 RZEEN\EtE-A 12,323,454 188,055,355 - 64,688,417  (34,196,812) 230,870,414
Loss and total recognised expenses AEEFERCRALLAR - - - - (14957159)  (14,957,159)
for the year (as previously reported) (Wa2%)
Correction of error on share of results of REEABEDNARE
an associate (Note 38) (Hi#38) - - - - 12,604,313 12,604,313
Loss and total recognised expenses rEEFERCRRILAR
for the year (as restated) (E31) - - - - (2,352,846) (2,352,846)
Loss on fair value changes of MREEREY
available-for-sale investments (Note 19) REEBERMZ19) - - - (12,541,069) - (12,541,069)
Issue of ordinary shares DR AR ETERR
by right isses (Note 30(a)) (H#30(a) 6161727 24,646,909 - - - 30,808,636
Issue of ordinary shares NEERRETEAR
by placing 3,697,037 5,245,928 - - - 8,942,965
Exercise of conversion right IETRRES TR 3,600,000 4,500,000 = = = 8,100,000
Share issue expenses RABTER - (1,890,902) = = > (1,890,902)
At 30 June 2009 (restated) R=BBAFRB=TH
(E51) 25,782,218 220,557,290 - 52,147,348 (36,549,658) 261,937,198
31
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #%HagzZ®%

For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FARRERE AEGER
Share Investment
Share Share option revaluation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
e ROEE BRERE REEM4HE  RAER @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
At 1 July 2009 RZEZEAFLA-H 25,782,218 220,557,290 - 52,147,348 (36,549,658) 261,937,198
Profit and total recognised income KEERIRE
for the year BRkEAR - = = - 35,970,191 35,970,191
Gain on fair value changes of HHEREZ
available-for-sale investments AREZDEF
(Note 19) (Hr&t19) - - - 1,309,519 - 1,309,519
Transfer to consolidated income REEAHREERE
statement on disposal of BEZREKER
available-for-sale investments - - - 2,581,220 - 2,581,220
Share option scheme (Note 30(g)): ARAER B (Mi£30(g)) -
- value of service - REEE - - 1,369,976 = = 1,369,976
- proceeds from share issued -BRTRAMENE 570,000 1,881,000 = = = 2,451,000
- transfer to share premium -ERARMEE = 116,916 (116,916) = = =
Issue of ordinary shares URERRBTERR
by placing (Note 30(f)) (Hat30(1) 5,156,000 7,218,400 - - - 12,374,400
Share issue expenses ROBTER - (594,629) - - = (594,629)
At 30 June 2010 R-E-ZEXA=+H 31,508,218 229,178,977 1,253,060 56,038,087 (579,467) 317,398,875

32
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 30 June 2010 B2 —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit (loss) before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of plant and equipment
Reversal of impairment loss recognised
in respect of other receivables
Interest income
Interest expenses
Share of results of an associate
Net loss on disposal of available-for-sale

BREATER (BR)
REHAT A
BERREITE
=1 3 H {th WK IR 2
HERE
AMEWA
2%
AR E AR EE
HEAHBEREZER

35,508,758

1,213,359

(2,500,000)
(2,054,150)
2,135,301

(24,290,040)

T—

P PRETTREE yrre—

i --g':-

#
i |5

2009
—EEhEF
HK$

BT
(Restated)
(E51)

(2,352,846)
1,277,996
(1,300,000)
(2,614,786)

2,127,863
(13,789,366)

investments 2,581,220 -
(Gain) loss on disposal of plant and equipment HEMERR B2 (&) BB (73,602) 66,733
Share option expenses BRRAER X 1,253,060 =
Operating cash flows before movements EEESRBANKEE
in working capital HERE 13,773,906 (16,584,406)

(Increase) decrease in financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss
Increase in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables
Increase (decrease) in other

payables and accruals

BARERKBERANEE 2
B EE (8B B

BANRE REREMBER
IR N

HtEAREREFTER
20 G 2)

(40,938,148)

(45,627,217)

26,266,156

8,790,368

(1,624,455)

(7,873,799)

Cash used in operations
Interest on bank and other borrowings

REXBRERE
AREFAZHEN ZRITR

(46,525,303)

(17,292,292)

wholly repayable within five years HihERAE (2,021,912) (1,914,009)
Interest on obligations under finance leases REHIREZRE (113,389) (213,854)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXBASRHFELEE

CARRIED FORWARD

(48,660,604)

(19,420,155)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 30 June 2010 #Z =% —

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BROUGHT FORWARD

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in amount due from

FERNAZTRLEFE

AARKREEBRER L FHR

REES
FEWRE ~ B FRIER D

HERENER
2010

—s-%%

HKS

B

(48,660,604)

2009
—BENF
HK$

BT
(Restated)
(E%)

(19,420,155)

investee companies 7,942,131 4,689,532
Acquisition of available-for-sale investments WEAHEERE - (20,000,000)
Decrease (increase) in amount due from WA (G n) FE U B & A B FRIE

an associate 4,843,500 (15,685,000)
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from WA (35 h0) FE Uk B & A\ B FRIR

related companies 13,850 (450)
Purchases of plant and equipment BEMERRE (52,720) (133,348)
Proceeds from disposal of HEAMHEEREMS

available-for-sale investments I 56,000,000 =
Proceeds from disposal of HEBEREE

plant and equipment Fris I8 352,796 120,000

NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN) RETHRSTFE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES A GR ) 69,099,557 (31,009,266)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BRITETBERFABRE 14,942,316 47,851,601
Proceeds from issue of debentures BITEREE Fﬁ?g'ﬁ)’( - 6,000,000
Repayment of debentures EEEREERTR (10,000,000) (5,000,000)
Expenses on issue of ordinary shares BITEBREX (594,629) (1,890,902)
Repayments of obligations EEMERNAEMRNSRIE

under finance leases (848,356) (940,739)
Decrease in amounts due to related companies WA AT REE N R RKIA (310,380) (1,155,493)
Increase (decrease) in amounts B/ ORd) BRESRIE

due to directors 952,626 (485,577)

NET CASH GENERATED FROM BEEZHZ2RSBERA

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 4,141,577 44,378,890
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND REeRELESEYIEM

CASH EQUIVALENTS (D) F8E 24,580,530 (6,050,531)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FNREREASEEY

BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,639,410 7,689,941
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRESREASEEY

END OF YEAR,

represented by, bank balances LUSRITE R 2 5 26,219,940 1,639,410

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & #8184 FR 2 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&## @Rz -

For the year ended 30 June 2010 B2 —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

1. GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands. The principal place of business is Suite
802, 8/F., Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”).

The principal activities of the Group are engaged in investing
in listed and unlisted companies mainly in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")
In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following new standards, amendments and interpretations
(“new HKFRSs”) which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which
are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning on 1 July
20009.

—REH
ARBANHAERSEMALABRRER L
7 ERONEBHERZERA R ([HR
Fr 1) £t o A B)sEMHE it A Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands » £
BEXMBUNEEBEFELITEIRIERK
E8#802% °

FEMBHMRUBILES  BRQRBREKE
DE (BB AEE]) 2 hEEHAER -

FEETERBREXY  TEREUNER
RAZEARANMB (HED 2 EmRFLTA
a o

RAFATREETERMBEREER
((ERMHHREER]

RAFE  AKEERAERATIHEBSE
DNEEMZHER - BRI K2R (BB
BIREER ) WREFRAEBMBHREER
ARG EARRE  ZERAR-ZEZINEF
tA-BERBRZHBFEEEN -

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007)

BB EREIR (ZZZBEFRER
HKAS 23 (Revised 2007)

BRI ERE23R (=T L F LK)
HKAS 27 (Revised 2008)
ERGTERFE27TH (ZS 2 N\FLER)
HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments)

&R E T ERI 3258 R E15E (BT A)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)

BB EREI95R (BRI &)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 (Amendments)

ERMBEREENEIRREBSHER
F275 (BRI &)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

& B EERFE2% (BFTA)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&#@RHizE

For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. RAHTREEITEBMBREER
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ((ERHHREER]) @
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

& B B S E RIS (RIEFT) E3 R

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments
BB EERETR (BFTA) TRIAEREZHE

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

BB RS R ELR BEDER

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 & HKAS 39 (Amendments) Embedded Derivatives

BB (ARMBERERBEES) -REFOR REMTETEA
REBEFEREI95% (BFTA)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
EE(BRMBRERREES) —REE15% B i 7 2 5 1

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
B8 (EARMBERERBERS) -REE165F HHEMIEBRERE

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

E8 (ERTBRERBEES) REE1TH PIRFEREEEFHAA

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers

B8 (BRUBRERREES) -2BE18FE REZFFEEEE

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2008

=B B EER (BETAR) REZZBNFEMCHEBMBREER 25E
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009 in relation to the

amendments to HKFRS 2, HKAS 38, Paragraph 80
to HKAS 39, HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 16

BB HEREEL (BFTA) PMIEFT BB S ERIE25 - BESTEREILY - FEFETERHE395
¥B80RR - B E (AR BERERBEER) -REFIFEREE (AR
BB ERREEE) RAEEIRN _SEAFHAHEEBUHRE

B 2 o

Except as described below, the adoption of the new and revised RRT SRt oh - BRANHTRT R RIS ET & B B S 3R
HKFRSs had no material effect on the consolidated financial EREANAEERRRBTIZ2EAHBZERE
statements of the Group for the current and previous periods. MERRBEEALE -
- HKFRS 8, Operating segments - BRUBRMEEAESE -[&£& 50
- HKAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation of financial - BEASTENFIR (TS LFLE

statements HRER R €4 0RTE: 4
- Improvements to HKFRSs (2008) - BEAVERSEANRE(ZZENE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&# @Rzt . ¥

For the year ended 30 June 2010 #E =2 -2 A=THILEE ol "
2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. RAHTREEITEBMBREER
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (B8 HHREEA] @3
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
- Amends to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures — - BRAVEREEAETREIT-[€®mI
improving disclosures about financial instruments B RE-NESRIAENEE
The impact of these developments is as follows: ZRMZBESLENZENT ¢
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments ERVBRELEAESREE DI
HKFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the EAVEREEABSERAETLE D BMAR
basis of internal reports about components of the Group that BAREBARDBOZATERIEAREE > MZ
are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker for ZRHRBAUAHTELERREETHERN - &
the purpose of allocating resources to segments and assessing MBS P BETERDBERRETM - ARK
their performance. The adoption of HKFRS 8 has resulted in the MTCKEBMBREERNDESS £ HER
presentation of segment information in a manner that is more WIRAFRERNAEESESETREREAESHR
consistent with internal reporting provided to the Group’s most HAMBENST BN —F -

senior executive management.

HKAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation of Financial Statements EESHENEIR (B LFELBE) MK
e E PRI

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 1 (revised 2007), details of HRRN T (EASTTEIFE1R (ZZ2SLEF
changes in equity during the period arising from transactions BAEET)  HAEEERRETRZMEEN
with equity shareholders in their capacity as such have been EREEHFE  CcKEMBHEMEKZEE S
presented separately from all other income and expenses in 25 W ERBITNGEEREZZBRPIIR -
a revised consolidated statement of changes in equity. All FEEMKZER  WEIASHRERN—IF
other items of income and expenses are presented in the P BEFEREXRTEY SRSERESR
consolidated income statement, if they are recognised as part HBER(—EHFNEZRR) DL - HE
of profit or loss for the period, or otherwise in a new primary SHEOCFEIUFEHHINHRA N o LLEHIHK
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive FRANESHTELEETMATHENERER
income. Corresponding amounts have been restated to conform @ W BEREEFE

to the new presentation. This change in presentation has no
effect on reported profit or loss, total income and expense or
net assets for any period presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&#@RHizE

For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — improving disclosures about financial instruments

As a result of the adoption of the amendments to HKFRS 7, the
financial statements included expanded disclosures about the
fair value measurement of the Group’s financial instruments,
categorising these fair value measurements into a three-
level fair value hierarchy according to the extent to which
they are based on observable market data. The Group has
taken advantage of the transitional provisions set out in the
amendments to HKFRS 7, under which comparative information
for the newly required disclosures about the fair value
measurements of financial instruments has not been provided.

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect
on how the results and financial position for the current or

2. RAFIREETERBMBHREER

((ERMBHREE] @

ERMBREENETRER] - ERITH
NEFEERTIAEZEE

HRERA T BBHBRELRETIREET » K
BRBREELEBERTAEAABENE
CRMTHESE - B9 ARG ERERMN
RENTBENTEBBEREESIR=EAAE
EER AEEEREBMBERELEINFETR
ETHBIEMRI  MAREEBEMIAAR
BEFEFEERNEESENLRESN -

R EBMBRELE L BE A ST R
BESTHBARER 252 EER I BRR

prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented.

ZHERNERERTE - At - BAFELAHA

Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required. o

The Group has not early adopted the following new and revised

AEEABEARAUTEBMERRERZ

standards, amendments or interpretations that have been R R SIBET R - BEI R A -

issued but are not yet effective.
HKFRSs (Amendments)

BBYBIREEL (ERTAH)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

=B B E R (BETA)
HKAS 24 (Revised)

BB G ERIE245% (RIEET)
HKAS 32 (Amendment)

&R e ER 3258 (BRI A)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

BB Y| EEIE1R (BT A)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

ERMBHEERE15E (BRI A)

38
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Amendments to HKAS 1, HKAS 7, HKAS 17, HKAS 36, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 5 and HKFRS 8 as part of Improvements to HKFRSs 2009'

BB EREIR BEESTHEAETS EESHEAFITHR - BB
SETERIZE365 - BRI FTEDEI9N - BRVBMEEAESHER
ERVBBEEAER 2B FAH-_ZENFEBUHREEL
ZBUEE R E S

Improvements to HKFRSs 20102

TE-ZEFEBUBREEL 2 BUE?

Related Party Disclosure?

BEALZEE

Classification of Rights Issues*

#R o 8

Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters'’

BRERAZENIRR

Limited Exemption from Comparative HKFRS 7 Disclosures for
First-time Adopters®

BRRAE BN BEREENETR 2 HELREN 2 ERERRS
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

BB | EER 5255 (BRI &)

HKFRS 9

=B U R 2R O

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 (Amendment)

58 (AR BERERREES)
—RRRE145% (BRI &)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19

58 (AR BERERRBEES) -2RBE195

EHIAS

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 and

1 January 2011, as appropriate

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Annual Report 2010 £ %}
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&# @Rzt -

For the year ended 30 June 2010 &2 — 2 —ZF <A=THIFE

o

RAFITREETEBUBREER
((EEMBREEL ] @

Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions'
EEZREEEROIARS

Financial Instruments®

Prepayments of Minimum Funding Requirement?
BEESER2EMRIE

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments?®
DRATERFESHMEE

i R-E-—ZFE-A-—HIZEHEREEHA
£

2 R-ZE—ZFtBE—HR=-Z——F—H—H
(MEA) Sz BB ZFERBENR

g R-B——F—-F—HIZEFERZFEEHH
£

4 R-E-—ZFE_A-—HIZEHREEHAM
£

8 NR-ZT-—ZFtA-—HRZEHB2FESHA
£

g R-E-—Z=F-—F—HIZEFERZFEHH
£

FEEBE
HREMBBREDREELRAEERR  HE
FHYHTADRAAEHE  MTHHBE
T AT o

REMBRRNDEREBEHMASHEMAZE
B BHREENRER - LI REVBRRE
BERXrREsz EmRAREBARKRIERZ
BREEANR -

FERBEEE
REVBBRREEAAARAFEFER (B
MEBLR) 2HBHRER -HMALAEENER
ERNMBREERR  EHBERNEKESD
2E - AIBMEEHE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&##@RHzE

For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESEE @

40

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of
the associates, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share
of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the relevant associate.

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & #8184 FR 2 7

FERBEEE(E)
REARFUBERHEZMBL R BWEERA
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Bf AGRERER -
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SIREEE -
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BENRAREREEHHAEATE » MEM
BRATHFEELEXIER -

BENRZEE BEREBDUSTHERE
MAZEESUMBRE - REERE > REE
DAZREDEBRARGEHBRR KT
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ZWBESEELRAE  UREEEFAESHEE
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EEREEEFRARZBE XRAFEEARE
RIRWHER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&## @Rz -

For the year ended 30 June 2010 #E =2 -2 A=THILEE -

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESEE @
(Continued)
Plant and equipment BERRE

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method at 25% per annum.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or,
where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item)
is included in the consolidated income statement in the year in
which the item is dereognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Annual Report 2010 £ #§
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&#@RHzE

For the year ended 30 June 2010 &2 —Z—ZF < A=THIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESHEE @

42

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest expenses over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
(including all fees on points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Income or expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term, or it is
part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent
pattern of short-term profit-making. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivates are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments or financial guarantee contracts.

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & #8184 FR 2\ 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&# @Rzt -

For the year ended 30 June 2010 B#E-T—ZE A=+ BILFE e
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESTEHE W@

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) LT HE(E)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BARAARABERK A ETEZ B EEE (&)

(“FVTPL”) (Continued)
A financial asset designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

— such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

— the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at
FVTPL.

At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At the end of the reporting period subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including loan
receivables, other receivables, amounts due from an associate/
related companies/investee companies and bank balances) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL
or loans and receivables.
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44

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

At end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured
at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in equity,
until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is removed from equity and recognised
in profit or loss (see accounting policy on impairment loss of
financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition (see accounting policy on
impairment loss of financial assets below).

Impairment loss of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its

cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counter party;

or

- default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & #8184 FR 2 7

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESEE @
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) £RIT A (/)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&## @Rz -

For the year ended 30 June 2010 B#E-—F—ZF<A=TAILFE -
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEFBR@
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) SRITH(8)
Impairment loss of financial assets (Continued) BB EEHEES (&)
For certain categories of financial assets, such as loan MERERLREMERTIEERE FTEEGKE
receivables and other receivables, assets that are assessed EMms EARTEHEIALAEREBECEEH
not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed B ETERREDEDG c BEEKRTIEASHE
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of BrzRERENEEARER BT NEFEZ &
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the B ERR{TEREH B 0 o LA B HE X FE U =k 1B
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase HEZBE R AR KB ARREEZEE o

in the number of delayed payments, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment BUBMERAARCHREENS  BESE
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective R EREEERPAEELE B ERTEERER
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the R MAEYENRESERAMEBERES
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present BRAREER 2T RRBERBEZENE
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the FEHEEE .

original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the MUK AR EEENS  BEHELR
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the ESERENEREREUEEER AT EERR
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated REE AT ARBESRREREWRETR R EMm
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return EWEEs R ERESEEY  c B REER
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be FAERFEREEED o

reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of financial assets is reduced by the BRARERTREDEZERERTIE - Hit
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the FEWERIE EWIESREAT BEAT B
exception of loans receivables, other receivables, amounts ENTIFIESN  FFTEBEE Z2REETIER
due from investee companies/related companies/an associate BEEEEENR - BEESEEAESTHIENE
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an HEETER - (MEWEHIE - HibEUWEIE -
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the FERESKHENT BEAT L NTHE
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When the BEAEEWE » BIEEIEER RS -
loan receivables, other receivables, amounts due from investee HEBWEBEAMETRES T AKRER -

companies/related companies/an associate are considered
uncollectible, they are written-off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written-
off are credited to profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESEE @
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(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss
is recognised directly in equity. For available-for-sale debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an
increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are generally
classified as other financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including other payables, amounts
due to directors/related companies, debentures and obligations
under finance leases are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&## @Rz -

For the year ended 30 June 2010 #Z=—Z—TF X A=1THIFE -
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEFBR@
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) 4@ T E (@)
Derecognition BN S
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive EREWEERSHECEFNER MK EE
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are BEENAEBCEENKSEBER B
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all KEBH EE R EIRE  ZER R EESEERE
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets. = NEUCHRIAMKEER  ZEESEREE
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between HOWRERAERAREXEEREI S EHE
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration EHANMEEHE RS RESE -

received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or

loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation EEBASYNMEIBoETEMRE ST EW
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or B BIREEESECHEERE - EEUHER 20K
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the EECEREEHECNREMRERE 2 ZER
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and I RHELT o

payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses BEEE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the NEEE R AEBERNESEREAE -
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is UEEZESEEERELEBERFE ZTME
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment Lo it EEZ N HEENELERE
loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be BzZEEKEEEREE W E S5 2 K
less than its carrying amounts, the carrying amount of the asset ot RESERRARY

is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying HRAEEEREE T EBREEZEREER
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of WEFEHAE 2 oY B EEE - AT N2 BRE
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying BREEBBRZESENBEIEENEEIR
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have BEEMBEEZREE - REBEZ PG
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for BEEZRAWA

the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Revenue recognition WFHER

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration WBIREE LTRSS ZERREKRREZLR
received or receivable for trading of listed securities and B8 RRAERLETREREZFEWA -
represents amounts receivable for interest income, dividend FEWAZEWRIFIE  RHERAALABERKSE
income from investments in listed securities and net gain on TANEEC HBEEEURATHAHERE 2B
disposal of financial assets at FVTPL and available-for-sale %o

investments. It also includes the net gains (losses) on financial
assets at FVTPL.
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Sale of available-for-sale securities and equity investments at
FVTPL are recognised on a trade date basis.

Dividend income from investments in listed securities including
financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment have been established.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset including financial
assets at FVTPL is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Income Tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESEE @
(Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued) WHER (E)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Income Tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recongnised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and an
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss,
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly
to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in
equity.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms
part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case, such exchange differences are recognised in equity
in the consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in equity, in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (the
exchange translation reserve). Such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign
operation is disposed of.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other assets are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included at the end of the
reporting period as a finance lease. obligation. Lease payments
are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
charged directly to profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESEE @

(Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance
costs in the consolidated financial statements in the period in
which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to
become exercisable. At the end of each reporting period, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. It recognises the impact of the
revision of original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income with corresponding
adjustment to equity over the remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and the share premium when the options are exercised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z — 2 —ZF <A=THIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are

described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required

to makes judgements, estimates and assumptions about the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily

apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated

assumptions are based on historical experience and other

factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(i)

(ii)

Useful lives and residual values of items of plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of Items
of plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various
factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from changes or improvements in production,
or from a change in the market demand for the product
or service output of the asset, expected usage of the
asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care and
maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on
the use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of
the asset is based on the experience of the Group with
similar assets that are used in a similar way. Additional
depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives and/
or the residual values of items of plant and equipment
are different from previous estimation. Useful lives and
residual values are reviewed, at each financial year end
date based on changes in circumstances.

Estimation of impairment loss recognised in respect
of loan and other receivables

The Group determines the impairment loss recognised
in respect of loan and other receivables in respect of
advances to the debtors based on objective evidence of
impairment and historical loss experience of the individual
balance of the counterparty.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iii) Valuation of available-for-sale investments
In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar unlisted equity securities, the Group determines
the fair values by using valuation techniques based on
information from a variety of sources, including the latest
information of the available-for-sale investments.

The carrying amounts of the available-for-sale investments
as at 30 June 2010 was HK$121,305,087 (2009:
HK$175,995,568), further details of which are set out in
Note 19.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
included debentures and obligations under finance leases
as disclosed in Notes 28 and 29 respectively, cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to equity holder of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
an annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through payment of
dividends, issue of debentures, new share issues and share
buy-back.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. E@IA
a) Categories of financial instruments a) ¢RMIBEZSE
2010 2009
—E-EF —EENF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets BEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAARERRERANEE 2 HKEE 56,632,226 15,694,078
Loan and receivables BER K ERRE
- loan receivables —-EWERFIE 10,000,000 10,000,000
— other receivables —H A E W IE 58,948,774 8,767,406
— amounts due from -EWESREATRE 2,313,060 10,255,191
investee companies
— amounts due from —EWEEARRE - 13,850
related companies
— amount due from an associate —EWEE N BRIE 30,220,000 35,063,500
- bank balances —RITE R 26,219,940 1,639,410
127,701,774 65,739,357
Available-for-sale investments HEERE 121,305,087 175,995,568
305,639,087 257,429,003
Financial liabilities b =R
Other financial liabilities at REBERAINEz2HEMTHEERE
amortised cost
— other payables —H b KIE 35,384,873 9,118,717
- amounts due to directors -EHEERE 1,101,884 149,258
— amounts due to related -EBEAITRIE - 310,380
companies
— debentures —EREE 1,000,000 11,000,000
- obligations under — R E N RIE
finance leases 510,622 1,358,978
37,997,379 21,937,333

o4
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6. €M I A @
BEEREEERERBER

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
b) Financial risk management objectives and b)

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, financial assets at FVTPL, loan
receivables, other receivables, amounts due from related
companies/an associate/investee companies, bank
balances, other payables, amounts due to directors/related
companies, debentures and obligations under finance
leases. Details of these finance instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk,
other price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

i)  Currency risk
The Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
are substantially denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
Accordingly, the management considers the foreign
exchange risk to the Group is not significant.

ii)  Other price risk
The Group’s available-for-sale investments and
financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at end of the reporting period. Therefore, the Group
is exposed to equity security price risk. Management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles.

For the equity security listed on the Stock Exchange,
an average volatility of 102% has been observed in
the Heng Sang Index during 2010.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

ii)  Other price risk (Continued)
In respect of the financial assets at FVTPL, the
following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every
102% change in the fair value of financial assets at
FVTPL, with all other variables held constant and
before any impact on tax, based on their carrying
amounts at the end of the reporting period.

ARBRRME

6. €M I A @
b) MBERERERFERIEE @)

B E R (&
i)  HMaESERE(E)

RBRAAERBBRANEE 28K
BEMS  TRETEHMITZR
ETBZBRTREMAREASE
A RBEREREHEH 2 REER
HE BAOAERWERANER M
BEEZAREZET102%2E 28

Bt o
Carrying Increase
amount of (decrease) in Increase
equity profit (loss) (decrease)
investments before tax in equity
RAERE R B AT A5 18 R 2 42 hn
ZIRHEE # i O 2>) (A 2)
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
2010 —E-FF
Investments listed in REBLEHZEE
Hong Kong
- financial assets at FVTPL  — A REBERKERRA
BRECHBEE 56,632,226 57,764,871 57,764,871
2009 —EESENE
Investments listed in REBLTZRE
Hong Kong
- financial assets at FVTPL —#ZAAERWERR
EEBECMEERE 15,694,078 16,007,960 16,007,960
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010 &2 —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations
as at 30 June 2010 in relation to each class of financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in
the consolidated balance sheet. In order to minimize the
credit risk, the Group regularly reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual financial assets at end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
internal funding. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk is
minimal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&# @Rz

For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. €@ T A @
b) Financial risk management objectives and b) F¥EREEEEREEK (&)
policies (Continued)
Maturity analysis BH A 5
The following table details the Group’s remaining TN AL HEEBR-_E—F

contractual maturities for its financial liabilities as at 30
June 2010 and 30 June 2009. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial

FERAZTER-Z2BAFASNA=TH
ZHRBEHNIMER - TRDBEHBE
Bz RMRREREMAY - ZEUKE

liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group is s N
BENREAREENRZHERAHDIE -

required to pay.

As at 30 June 2010 R-ZE-—ZTFXHA=1+H

Total

On demand/ One year contractual
within to Over undiscounted Carrying
one year two years two years cash flow amount

EEEY: 3
RER/—FR -FEWF BBME RERELE REE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Other payables HitEAFA 35,384,873 - - 35,384,873 35,384,873
Amounts due to directors ERESHE 1,101,884 - - 1,101,884 1,101,884
Debentures ERE 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 1,000,000
Obligations under finance leases RERNRE 479,240 58,439 - 537,679 510,622
37,965,997 58,439 - 38,024,436 37,997,379

As at 30 June 2009 R-ZEZEAFARA=1H

Total

On demand/ One year contractual
within to Over  undiscounted Carrying
one year two years two years cash flow amount

BRRER
RER/-FR —FEWMF BBWE RERELE REE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Other payables Htr {08 9,118,717 - - 9,118,717 9,118,717
Amounts due to directors EREEHE 149,258 = = 149,258 149,258
Amounts due to related companies ERBEEATNE 310,380 = = 310,380 310,380
Debentures EEE 11,820,000 - - 11,820,000 11,000,000
Obligations under finance leases RERNRE 972,000 458,110 163,200 1,593,310 1,358,978
22,370,355 458,110 163,200 22,991,665 21,937,333
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010 &2 —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
c) Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

- the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded on active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask prices
respectively; and

— the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices from observable current

market transactions as input.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position of the Group approximate their fair
values due to their immediate or short-term maturities.

The following table presents the carrying value of financial
instruments measured at fair value at end of the reporting
period across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy
defined in HKFRS 7, Financial instruments Disclosures,
with the fair value of each financial instrument categorized
in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to that fair value measurement. The levels are
defined as follows:

- Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical financial instruments;

— Level 2 (mid level): fair values measured using
quoted process in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques in which
all significant inputs are directly or indirectly based on
observable market data; and

— Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using

valuation techniques in which any significant input is

not based on observable market data.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&# @Rz

For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.
c) Fair value (Continued)
As at 30 June 2010

ol =)
c) DREGHE)
R-ZE—ZTFXA=1+H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£—E £=E E=E mE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Financial assets at fair value B2 AERBER
through profit or loss NEBZHEEE
- listed securities - tmES 56,632,226 - - 56,632,226
Available-for-sale financial AEHEZHEEE
assets
- unlisted, quoted securities -k LtHEEES - 121,305,087 - 121,305,087
56,632,226 121,305,087 - 177,937,313
7. TURNOVER 7. EXEHE
Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable on EEEAIEFEANRAALABRNEREIE 2B
investments and net profit (loss) on financial assets at FVTPL EERA(BE)EEEZC K EWRRIEI
during the year as follows: T
2010 2009
—E2-ZF —EETNF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Turnover B
Net profit (loss) on financial assets RARERBEREEZ
at FVTPL B EEFEN (FR) 21,155,138 (5,921,763)
Dividend income from investments BRELFHESFZRERA
in listed securities 45,023 369,343
Interest income FE WA 1,100 1,847
21,201,261 (5,550,573)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&& 8@zt -

For the year ended 30 June 2010 &2 —Z—ZF <A=THIFE ot Pl

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. oEEHR

HKFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the
basis of internal reports about components of the Group that
are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker for
the purpose of allocating resources to segments and assessing
their performance. In contrast, the predecessor Standard (HKAS
14 Segment Reporting) required an entity to identify two sets
of segments (business and geographical) using a risks and
returns approach.

In the past, the Group’s primary report format was geographical
segments and segment information reported externally was
analysed on the basis of the geographical location of the
investments. Information reported to the chief operating
decision maker (i.e. board of directors of the Company) is
analysed on the basis of the nature. Thus, the application
of HKFRS 8 has resulted in a redesignation of the Group’s
reportable segments as compared with the primary reportable
segments determined in accordance with HKAS 14.

The principal activity of the Group is investing in listed and
unlisted companies. The Group’s operating and reportable
segments under HKFRS 8 are therefore as follows:

Financial assets - Investments in securities listed on
at FVTPL Hong Kong Stock Exchange, (Note

3)

Investments in unlisted securities
(Note 3)

Available-for-sale -

investment
Associate - Investments in an entity which the
Group has significant influence and
that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&# @Rz

For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8.
For the year ended 30 June 2010

2 EER (&)
BE-_Z-EFA=1tHLEE

Investment Investment
in financial in available- Investment
assets for-sale in an
at FVTPL  investments associate  Unallocated Total
RERARE
REBRAERE RETH
ZHBEE HERE REBELNT AOE “am
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT B B B BT
Segment revenue sl 21,201,261 2,054,150 - 2,540,062 25,795,473
Administrative expenses THER - - - (12,360,234) (12,360,234)
Segment result DWEE 21,201,261 2,054,150 - (9,820,172) 13,435,239
Finance costs BEHK (1,569,009) - - (566,292)  (2,135,301)
Reversal of impairment loss e 3% HL it &
recognised in respect of kBB
other receivables - - - 2,500,000 2,500,000
Net loss on disposal of HEATHHE
available-for-sale investments REFESR - (2,581,220) - - (2,581,220)
Share of results of an associate FihgE N REE - - 24,290,040 - 24,290,040
Profit (loss) before tax RBAEF (FR) 19,632,252 (527,070) 24,290,040 (7,886,464) 35,508,758
Income tax Fris® - - - 461,433 461,433
Profit (loss) for the year rEERA(EE) 19,632,252 (527,070) 24,290,040 (7,425,031) 35,970,191
Segment assets AHEE 57,915,461 164,477,471 79,558,592 54,013,432 355,964,956
Segment liabilities 2BEE 16,003,991 3,000,000 - 19,562,090 38,566,081
Other segment information Hitrn HER
Depreciation of plant and RER®ZE
equipment nE - - - 1,213,359 1,213,359
Purchase of plant and equipment BEBERRE - - - 52,720 52,720
Gain on disposal of plant HERERE
and equipment P& - - - 73,602 73,602
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &efiss®fz o\ *l‘i

For the year ended 30 June 2010 B#E=-T—TF X A=1THILFE T
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. 7HEXR @
For the year ended 30 June 2009 BE-ZZAFRA=THLEE
Investment Investment
in financial in available- Investment
assets for-sale in an
at FVTPL investments associate Unallocated Total
RERNAE
RBERAEE REFMH
ZHBEE HERE RERENF AAE ok
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Segment revenue (loss) 2BWE (BE) (5,550,573) 2,614,786 = 66,492 (2,869,295)
Administrative expenses THER - - - (12,445,054)  (12,445,054)
Segment result P (5,550,573) 2,614,786 - (12378562)  (15,314,349)
Finance costs REHK (608,085) - - (1519778) (2,127,863
Reversal of impairment loss [E] #3¢ L4 FE G
recognised in respect of IR EE
other receivables - - - 1,300,000 1,300,000
Share of results of an associate EEBE N REE - = 13,789,366 = 13,789,366
Profit (loss) before tax BEHRA (58) (6,158,658) 2,614,786 13,789,366  (12,598,340)  (2,352,846)
Income tax P %t - - - - -
Profit (loss) for the year AEERF (F8) (6,158,658) 2,614,786 13,780,366  (12,598,340)  (2,352,846)
Segment assets AHEE 19,618,563 189,802,070 60,112,052 15,371,980 284,904,665
Segment liabilities AHEB 2,542,263 3,500,000 = 16,925,204 22,967,467
Other segment information Hitrn HER
Depreciation of plant and REK®ZE
equipment nE - = = 1,277,996 1,277,996
Purchase of plant and equipment BEBRERRE - - - 133,348 133,348
Loss on disposal of plant HEBRERE
and equipment ZER - = = 66,733 66,733

Given the nature of the Group’s operation is investment

holding, there was no information regarding major customers as

determined by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&# @Rz

For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hfilg A
2010 2009
—E-EF —EEhF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest income on amounts due EWESZSRENRRIEZ
from investee companies FE YA 1,558,150 2,159,553
Interest income on other receivables H b fE U 8 2 F B WA 496,000 455,233
Net sundry income MIEW A FERE 2,540,062 66,492
4,594,212 2,681,278
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. @& X &

2010 2009
—E-EF —EENF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Interest expenses on borrowings BRAFRBHEEREZ

wholly repayable within five years: FERX:

- bank overdrafts —RITEX 1,150 21,239
— debentures —fEREH 451,753 1,227,151
- margin accounts —-HREF 1,569,009 608,085
- convertible bonds - ES - 57,534
- finance leases —-EEEN 113,389 213,854
2,135,301 2,127,863
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&& 8@zt ol

For the year ended 30 June 2010 &2 —Z—ZF <A=THIFE i

11. PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 11. BRB AT B FI (B518)

The Group’s profit (loss) for the year has been arrived at after

charging (crediting):

AEBZAFERN (FER) SMERGIA)

2010 2009
—E-%F —ETNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(E5)
Directors’ emoluments (Note 15) BEEME (HF15) 2,816,065 3,426,000
Staff costs =%
Salaries, allowances and e RREREMER
other benefits 678,168 978,623
MPF Scheme contributions BES AR 27,220 79,091
Total staff costs B TR 3,521,453 4,483,714
Auditor’s remuneration BRHENE
- audit service — R BUR 420,000 420,000
- other services —H bR 100,000 =
Depreciation of plant and equipment BMERREBITE
- owned assets -BEEE 399,382 405,346
- leased assets —-fHEEE 813,977 872,650
Minimum lease payments under HEMERBLEROZ
operating lease for rented premises RiEEE 1,200,000 1,200,000
(Gain) loss on disposal of plant HEBE KRR E
and equipment 2 () EiE (73,602) 66,733
Share of income tax expense of EhEE AR ZMEBHRAX
an associate 4,561,201 2,744,109
Net loss on disposal of HEAHELERERSE
available-for-sale investments 2,581,220 -

Annual Report 2010 £ %}
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FERAZTRLEFE

FR B RERME

For the year ended 30 June 2010 #Z =% —

12. INCOME TAX

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

12. FiBH

BE_Z-ZFEAA=THLFEZEBIE

assessable profits for the year ended 30 June 2010.

The income tax for the year can be reconciled to the profit

BIRfhETERBUE R 216.5%5T & o

FERZAEHRAX RS WERZBRBA

(loss) before tax per the consolidated income statement as B (BE) HERMNT :
follows:
2010 2009
—E-2F —EEAF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(E51)

Profit (loss) before tax RR B AT BRI (&5 18) 35,508,758 (2,352,846)
Tax at domestic income tax rate of ARt FT 15 B 2 16.5%

16.5% STEZBIE 5,858,945 (388,220)
Tax effect of share of results of an EEBMERNREBEIHBELE

associate (4,007,855) (2,275,246)
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERBBRAZBBZE

tax purpose (419,934) (275,746)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible MBS B

for tax purpose 106,685 210,869
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ABRAKRBEE2HESE - 2,728,343
Tax effect of utilisation of prior year's B AR ARERBRIEER

tax losses not recognised 2B K e (1,913,277) =
Tax effect of origination and reversal BT ECEEREE

of temporary differences ZEBELE 53,205 =
Tax effect of loss not allowed RAATFHREBEZHESE 322,231 =
Adjustment for over-provision AFEEREBRE 2 RAE

in previous years (461,433) -
Income tax income P& W= (461,433) -

At 30 June 2010, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$37,870,258 (2008: HK$48,190,105) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been

recognised due to the unpredictability of future profits

streams. The unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward

indefinitely.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #G&##%mxkiz= \ ﬂ-‘.,
For the year ended 30 June 2010 BE-E—TEAA=+HILEE ; gl
13. DIVIDEND 13. R 2

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for BEEWFAEBRABE_ZE—ZFEA=1H

the year ended 30 June 2010 (2009: Nil). LEFEZFARE(ZEZThE &) -
14. EARNINGS (LOSSES) PER SHARE 14. SREF (F18)

The calculation of the basic earnings (losses) per share BREARER (BE) DREAQATDRESEA

is based on the Group’s profit for the year attributable to FE{L 2 F35,970,191B T (ZZEZNFES :

the equity holders of the Company of HK$35,970,191 (2009 K5182,352,84678 T) 5T &

restated: loss of HK$2,352,846).

The basic earnings (losses) per share is based on the weighted EREARA (BR) NREFERNCRITER
average number of 286,368,807 (2009: 192,023,506) ordinary % 2 hnAE 7 19 £0286,368,807 (ZEZAF ¢
shares in issue during the year. 192,023,506%) 5T &

There was no dilution effect on the basic earnings (losses) per HREBZ-Z-—-ZSEXA=Z+HRZ=ZZEZIE
Share for the years ended 30 June 2010 and 30 June 2009 as ANRA=ZTHLEMEEAYBEE 2B ERNG
there were no dilutive Shares outstanding during the two years BERBZE-_Z—ZTFR-_ZFZEAFAA=1+
ended 30 June 2010 and 30 June 20009. EMEFEAZEREARRR (BE) LEEE

%)

Earnings (losses) per share

BREXER (BE)
2010 2009
—E—-2fF —EZhEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(E %)
Earnings (losses) per share - basic BREF (EH8) 0.1256 (0.0123)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&# @Rz

For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z — 2 —ZF <A=THIFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 15. EERSREEEMNS

EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM =
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (2009: ENTENFAB(ZZZNE: £R)
seven) directors were as follows: BEEvMEWT

BE-Z-ZEXA=1+THLEE

Other emoluments

For the year ended 30 June 2010

Hit e
Salaries,
allowances MPF
and other Performance Scheme
Fees benefits bonus contributions Total
e 2R BEd
e REMER BRI STEHX @it
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT B B B
Executive directors: HITEE
Yau Chung Hong ERMm 720,000 - - - 720,000
Chui Tak Keung, Duncan e =L 1,260,000 - - 24,000 1,284,000
Chow Ka Wo, Alex EEV 360,000 - - - 360,000
(Resigned on 31 (R=Z-ZF=R
March 2010) =+ - HE)
Kong Fanpeng EN 103,549 - - - 103,549
(Appointed on 18 (M=Z2-E%=R
March 2010) T NBEZE)
Liu Ta-pei 2KE 44,516 - - - 44,516
(Appointed on 17 (R=2—Z%1A
May 2010) T AEZMA)
Non-executive director: FHITEE .
Ma Kwok Keung, Kenneth EE® 70,000 - - - 70,000
(Retired on 29 November (R=EERET-A
2009) —+hBEE)
Independent non-executive BUHHATEE .
directors:
Lam Kwan wE 78,000 - - - 78,000
Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan RR 36 42 78,000 - - - 78,000
Shiu Siu Tao BEOH 78,000 - - - 78,000
2,792,065 - - 24,000 2,816,065
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z — 2 —ZF <A=THIFE i

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2009

15. EERSREEREME 1)

(a) EEH S (@)
BE-SSNEAA=tALERE

Other emoluments

Hit# <
Salaries,
allowances MPF
and other  Performance Scheme
Fees benefits bonus  contributions Total
e 2 BEE
ne REMEF B HEEN st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT B BT
Executive directors: HITEE .
Yau Chung Hong EE/ 720,000 - - - 720,000
Chui Tak Keung, Duncan HhER 1,800,000 - - 24,000 1,824,000
Chow Ka Wo, Alex BAHEM 480,000 - - - 480,000
Non-executive director: FHITEE
Ma Kwok Keung, Kenneth BRI 168,000 - - - 168,000
Independent non-executive BYFHHTEE
directors:
Lam Kwan E 78,000 = = = 78,000
Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan B 42 78,000 = = = 78,000
Shiu Siu Tao #OHE 78,000 - - - 78,000
3,402,000 - - 24,000 3,426,000

No director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the two years ended 30 June 2010 and 30 June
2009. No incentive payment for joining the Group or
compensation for loss for office was paid or payable to any
director during the two years ended 30 June 2010 and 30
June 2009.

The remuneration of directors including the performance
bonus is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individual and market
trends.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&#@RHizE

For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z —Z—ZF < A=THIFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Senior management’s emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2009: three) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments

15. EERSREEREME @)

(b) SREEEMWS
AEBREEEHEALTEBE=ZR (=2
NE ZR)AARAES  ERHMSHE
HALX - HBWE (CEEAE W)

of the remaining two (2009: two) highest paid individuals BeHmATZBENT :
were as follows:
2010 2009
—E-FF —EBERAF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries, allowances and other e ERRHEAMEF
benefits 438,900 552,000
MPF Scheme contributions BES AR 16,000 24,000
454,900 576,000

The emoluments of the two (2009: two) highest paid
individuals fall in the following bands:

Emoluments bands B < 48 5

Nil - HK$1,000,000 Z£%1,000,0007% 7T

ME(CRENF  MB)ERSHFALZHEE
LT 4Rl

Number of individuals

N
2010 2009
—E-%¥%  —EBINF
2 2

No incentive payment for joining the Group or
compensation for loss for office was paid or payable to
any highest paid individuals (including directors and other
employees) during the two years ended 30 June 2010 and
30 June 2009.

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & #8184 FR 2\ 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&##%mzkiz=
For the year ended 30 June 2010 B =% —E&XA=+AILEE .
16. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. B E R RHE
Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
improvements and fixtures  equipment  Computers vehicles Total
HENELE HAREKE HAZERE B RE @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
CosT BA
At 1 July 2008 R-ZZENFtA—H 1,184,360 169,376 120,339 143,530 3,871,584 5,489,189
Additions wE - 18,445 7,468 - 515,435 541,348
Disposals HE - - - - (448,159) (448,159)
At 30 June 2009 R=ZBZEAERAZTH
and 1 July 2009 R-ZEREtA-H 1,184,360 187,821 127,807 143,530 3,938,860 5,582,378
Additions NE - 52,720 - - - 52,720
Disposals HE - - - - (1,155,435)  (1,155,435)
At 30 June 2010 R-B-Z£XA=tH 1,184,360 240,541 127,807 143,530 2,783,425 4,479,663
ACCUMULATED RitHE
DEPRECIATION
At 1 July 2008 R-ZEENFtA—-H 194,477 80,437 42,316 38,272 1,783,196 2,138,698
Charge for the year ERHE 296,090 42,551 30,822 35,883 872,650 1,277,996
Eliminated on disposals  {H& K4 - - - - (261,426) (261,426)
At 30 June 2009 R=ZBERERA=TA
and at 1 July 2009 KR=ZEREtA-H 490,567 122,988 73,138 74,155 2,394,420 3,155,268
Charge for the year ERHE 296,090 40,619 29,424 33,249 813,977 1,213,359
Eliminated on disposals B &K 48 - - - - (876,241) (876,241)
At 30 June 2010 R-BEhE~A=1A 786,657 163,607 102,562 107,404 2,332,156 3,492,386
CARRYING VALUES REFE
At 30 June 2010 R-EB-Z£XA=tH 397,703 76,934 25,245 36,126 451,269 987,277
At 30 June 2009 R=ZBZEAERAZTH 693,793 64,833 54,669 69,375 1,544,440 2,427,110
At 30 June 2008 RZBZENERAZTH 989,883 88,939 78,023 105,258 2,088,388 3,350,491

The carrying value of assets held under finance leases

included in the total carrying value of motor vehicles of the
Group as at 30 June 2010 amounted to HK$451,269 (2009:

HK$1,544,440).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&## @Rz

For the year ended 30 June 2010 &2 —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

17. REBME R T 2 s

2010 2009 2008
—E-EfF —EEhF —EENFE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
(Restated)
(E5)
Cost of investment in an MIEEMEE QT
unlisted associate ZEBREKA 4,500,000 4,500,000 4,500,000
Share of post-acquisition BiEW BB EE
results 44,838,592 20,548,552 6,759,186
49,338,592 25,048,552 11,259,186
2010 2009 2008
—E—ZF —EENFE —EENFE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Amount due from an associate FE Uk B & N B TR 30,220,000 35,063,500 19,378,500

The amount due from an associate was unsecured, interest—
free and repayable on demand.

As at 30 June 2010, the Group has interest in the following

associate:
Place of
incorporation
Form of and operations
business Class of AR 3L
Name of associate structure shares held R
BeENREH E¥REBF  FAEROER By
CNI Bullion Limited Incorporated ~ Ordinary share  Hong Kong
RE A EREFRAH EEi 1 LRk g

12
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BURBE A AREDFEN  RERARER

R-ZB-—BEAA=Z+H  AEERUTHE
NEFEEER

Percentage
of equity

Nominal value attributable

of issued to the Group
share capital KEE
2&1T {5 %%  Principal activities
RAEE AR TEEH

HK$15,000,000 30% Provision of services
15,000,000 1T on trading of gold in
Hong Kong gold market
RRBEEETEZES
BERMRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&## @Rz

For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z — 2 -2 <A=THIFE

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

The summarised unaudited financial information in respect

17. R E R B 2 & ()
AEMBE AR REERSBEERBETR

of the Group’s associate is set out below: mT
2010 2009 2008
—E-ZF —EENEF —EENF
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
(Restated)
(&%)
Total assets HEE 228,065,966 155,379,778 97,805,458
Total liabilities me s (63,603,995)  (71,884,607)  (60,274,839)
Net assets EEFHE 164,461,971 83,493,171 37,530,619
Group’s share of net assets AEBEMEE QT
of an associate EEFE 49,338,592 25,048,552 11,259,186
Turnover B 131,196,882 71,938,523 104,860,028
Profit for the year R E R T 80,966,799 45,964,553 21,286,380
Group’s share of results of TEBFREMN
an associate for the year B NTBEE 24,290,040 13,789,366 6,385,914

Annual Report 2010 £
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010 &2 —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

18. LOAN RECEIVABLES

18. ERERFIE

&
IS

ARBRRMNE

2010 2009 2008
—E-%F —EThF = s
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Term loans (Note) TEHER () 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
Analysed for report purpose TR Z DA

Current assets RBEE 10,000,000 10,000,000 =
Non-current assets ERBEE - = 10,000,000
10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000

Notes: Kia -

As at 30 June 2010, the term loan granted to Quidam was
HK$10,000,000. The term loan is unsecured, bears interest at 8% per
annum for the period from 1 July 2009 to 30 June 2010. The repayment
date of the term loan has been extended from 31 December 2009 to 30
June 2011.

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

R=Z2—2FXA=+H" ﬁ%QuidamZEﬁHEH’
#10,000,0008 T - EHERBEEKFRR =

hWELtA-—BE=Z—
ZBEFE - EMENRZERABA=

BEEXNA= +B%ﬁ&¢ﬂ
ZEhE+=A

=t+t—HEREZZE-——HXA=tH-

19. I HHERE

2010 2009 2008
—E-%F —ETNF = L U5
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Unlisted investments, at fair value BAARBEIRZ

(Notes (a) and (b)) FETMRE
(Ktit(a) R (b)) 121,305,087 175,995,568 168,536,637

Analysed for reporting purposes as: FhERIR DT -
Current i 63,056,070 118,003,200 71,043,665
Non-current IR E 58,249,017 57,992,368 97,492,972
121,305,087 175,995,568 168,536,637

14
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&## @Rz ol

For the year ended 30 June 2010 #EZ =T —ZFXA=THILFE ; T

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. I ERE (@)

(Continued)

The movement in the change of fair value is as follows:

DAELHZEBHBEROT :

2010 2009 2008

—B-%F —ETNF —ETN\F

HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT

As at 1 July RntBA—H 175,995,568 168,536,637 56,446,836

Additions BE - 20,000,000 88,581,220

Disposals 4 (56,000,000) - (26,553,336)

Increase (decrease) in fair values A RAEE M G 2) 1,309,519 (12,541,069) 50,061,917

As at 30 June KAB=1+H 121,305,087 175,995,568 168,536,637
Notes: =

(a) The unlisted equity securities represent investments in private (a) FLTRABFEBE-_Z—ZFFAA=TH
entities as at 30 June 2010 details are as follows: RERBADBZHBUOT ¢

Percentage

of equity

Particulars interest

Place of of equity attributable
Name incorporation interest held Acquisition to the Group
= it g & cost Fair value AEEEMN
=E X 3L i 26 HEFE s B8 B A< DNRE RET DL
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Quidam Assets Limited (b)(i) British Virgin Ordinary share 15,267,000 58,249,017! 18.25%
Islands (“BVI") EBER
KEELES
IIN Network Education (BVI) Limited (b)(ii)) BVI Ordinary share 20,000,000 30,360,330 15%
REELES ZiER
UCCTV Holdings Limited (b)(iii) BVI Ordinary share 30,000,000 32,695,740’ 20%
KEBELES ZER

1. The fair value was arrived at with reference to the valuation

carried out at the end of the reporting period by LCH (Asia-

Pacific) Surveyors Limited (“LCH”), independent valuers not

connected with the Group. LCH has appropriate qualification

and recent experience in the valuation of similar investments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&# @Rz

For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z — 2 —ZF <A=THIFE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b) The unlisted equity securities represent investments in private

entities as at 30 June 2010 details are as follows:

(i) Quidam Assets Limited (“Quidam”) and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in provision of factoring and guaranty
services in the PRC. No dividend was received during the
year ended 30 June 2010.

(ii) 1IN Network Education (BVI) Limited (“IIN Network”)
is an education content services operator to provide
comprehensive solutions for educational informatisation. No

dividend was received during the year ended 30 June 2010.

(iii) UCCTV Holdings Limited (“UCCTV”) and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in production of quality, cultural

advertisement. No dividend was received during the year
ended 30 June 2010.

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at FVTPL as at 30 June 2010 comprise:

Fair value: NRE:
Securities listed in Hong Kong BEEBEZRE R
held for trading Fi#E

19. I HERE (@)
Biat - (48)

(b) FLTRABFEEE-ZT-ZTFSA=1+H
RAADE2RE  FHBEUT :

(i) Quidam Assets Limited ([ Quidam|) &
HMBARETERPERSRMURER
ERR%E RBE=-ZE-—FE~A=+
Bl FERILEKEBEMBRES -

(ii) 1IN Network Education (BVI)Limited
(TNIN Network ) T —RE BRI & &
B RHEBEEMZ2EBRAR R
BHE-—Z-—ZH5EARAZTHLFERYL
EREBEMRE -

(iii) UCCTV Holdings Limited (TUCCTV)
REMBARETERBREBEXLE

E - RBE-Z2-ZFFA=tHLF
E R EKEREMRE -

20. RAAERUERARECUBEE

REZZB-—ZFXRAZTH  BAABEBRKER

PRS2 B R E A
2010 2009 2008
—2-%F —BTBRE  —BBN\F
HK$ HK$ HK$

T BT BT
56,632,226 15,694,078 24,484,446

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets at FVTPL were
determined based on the quoted market bid prices available on
the relevant exchanges at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&# @Rz . ¥

For the year ended 30 June 2010 #Z =T —ZFXA=THILFE R

PR

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Particulars of the listed securities held as at 30 June 2010 are

20. BEORERUBERABRBEZUBEE
(&)
R-B—BEXAZTEREZTELHES

as follows: ZHBWT
Percentage
of equity
Market value interest
Particulars as at 30 attributable
of equity June 2010 to the Group
Place of interest held Acquisition R=-E-FF REBMEN
Name Notes incorporation JET &N cost ~A=1+H (&N £
=L M o 0 B Lt B BRFE L B A 2T ARk
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Longlife Group Holdings Limited i Cayman Islands  Ordinary share 18,303,413 22,954,050 9.487%
BHREEERERAA HERE EER
Omnicorp Limited ii Bermuda Ordinary share 12,332,249 17,762,500 2.771%
MEERARA T BRE BER
Sustainable Forest Holdings iii Bermuda Ordinary share 11,737,800 6,346,800 0.451%
Limited BRE BBk
KRMEZERER A
Z-Obee Holdings Limited iv Bermuda Ordinary share 8,568,060 5,120,900 0.419%
BRE BBR
Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited v Bermuda Ordinary share 2,640,000 1,520,000 0.438%
MET(RE)BRAA BRE EER
Huscoke Resources Holdings vi Bermuda Ordinary share 855,000 572,000 0.031%
Limited BRE BBk
NEERERERDA
Kaisun Energy Group Limited vii Cayman Islands  Ordinary share 446,550 440,000 0.021%
SIERERERBRD A HERS EER
Info Communication Holdings viii Cayman Islands  Ordinary share 466,880 433,440 0.617%
Limited HEHS EER
MBERARAH
OP Financial Investments Limited ix Cayman Islands  Ordinary share 366,960 370,560 0.020%

RATHMREARAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FERAZTRLEFE

FEUHRRNEE

For the year ended 30 June 2010 &2 =% —

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 0. R AARERUERNEBCUKEE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued) Fé)
Particulars of the listed securities held as at 30 June 2010 are KRB ZFERAZTHREEZETELTRES
as follows: (Continued) 3 %PD T : (#&)
Percentage
of equity
Market value interest
Particulars as at 30 attributable
of equity June 2010 to the Group
Place of interest held Acquisition R=-E-FF RE@BMEN
Name Notes incorporation FRA cost ~AA=1+H (&N £
% M o 0 B L B BRFE B8 B A 2T ARk
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Mastermind Capital Limited X Cayman Islands  Ordinary share 414,137 328,000 0.185%
SEREARALT HERE EER
Sino-Tech International Xi Bermuda Ordinary share 472,000 324,000 0.013%
Holdings Limited BRE BBk
ZLEREERRLTA
Kingsoft Corporation Limited Xii Cayman Islands  Ordinary share 457,150 228,000 0.005%
SLBHERAH HEHS BER
Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited Xiii Bermuda Ordinary share 348,000 210,000 0.003%
M BEERAT BRE EBER
Kingdom Holdings Limited Xiv Cayman Islands  Ordinary share 106,941 19,500 0.008%
SEZRERAT HEHE EBEkR
China Star Entertainment XV Bermuda Ordinary share 142,993 2,476 0.001%
Limited BRE BBk
HEEEBEERAA

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & #8184 FR 2\ 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z — 2 —ZF <A=THIFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

Longlife Group Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the manufacture, research and development
and distribution of consumer cosmetic, health related products,
capsules products, health supplement wine and dental materials
and equipment. No dividend was received during the year
ended 30 June 2010. According to the latest published financial
statements of Longlife Group Holdings Limited, it had net assets
value of approximately HK$101,186,000.

Omnicorp Limited and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in manufacture and sales of electronic components and product,
property holding and investment holding. No dividend was
received during the year ended 30 June 2010. According to the
latest published financial statements of Omnicorp Limited, it had

net assets value of approximately HK$480,845,000.

Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the tree felling service, sustainable forest
management, China forests operation, building materials supply
and installation, real estate development and mining. No dividend
was received during the year ended 30 June 2010. According to
the latest published financial statements of Sustainable Forest
Holdings Limited, it had net assets value of approximately
HK$2,198,125,000.

Z-Obee Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the development and production of software and
solutions for mobile appliances, mobile headset hardware, mobile
headset and mobile headset components. No dividend was
received during the year ended 30 June 2010. According to the
latest published financial statements of Z-Obee Holdings Limited,

it had net assets value of approximately HK$384,980,123.

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the import, marketing and distribution of
cars, electrical appliances and fashion apparels. No dividend was
received during the year ended 30 June 2010. According to the
latest published financial statements of Wo Kee Hong (Holdings)
Limited, it had net assets value of approximately HK$255,606,000.
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20. BEARERBBERANEEZMBEE

(#&)
BaE

(M

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

BMOBREEERAERAARENBLARAEE
REEFIHREREH MEERRRE
ER - RBE-Z-ZFAA=THLFE
RILJ|BEREFTRE - REMBZERERA
RO zHBEERR REEFENR
101,186,0005% 7T ©

MEZRERADAREMBATDNETERES

THREREH VEERRRREZR  -RE
E_E-ZEXA=THLFEERLERERE
ARE - REMEERERATARAH TR
SRR - HEEFELN5480,845,000/87T ©

KERMEZRRERATAREMBARNEIERS
REB AR FHREBEREERBEFM
HERMRZE EHEMBNEE REBZE
—E-FEXNA=TRILEEERLEKEEM
B2 o BIBKRMEIEIRAE R A &8
ZEHEK  HEEFELN5H2,198,125,000%8

JC °

Z-Obee Holdings Limited R EME AT EE
REBUBBNEERARDBEER - FH
B RBERRFESHREBRERE R
BE-_Z-ZEAA=1THLEERLENK
BRI B 2 ° R #EZ-Obee Holdings Limited
BRIEBHBR2HBERR HEEEFELAR
384,980,1238 7T ©

MET (@) BRAFAREMBARD EER
ERE ERREMRRENED  THERER
S REBE_ZT-ZEFXA=ZTHLFER
WEKBEMRE - REMZT (RE) BRI
RARMHTIR 2 WKHRE - REEFENS
255,606,0007%8 T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010 &2 —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Huscoke Resources Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in coal-related ancillary business, investment
holding, property holding and share investment and the design,
manufacture and sale of consumer home products. No dividend
was received during the year ended 30 June 2010. According to
the latest published financial statements of Huscoke Resources
Holdings Limited, it had net assets value of approximately
HK$2,010,915,000.

Kaisun Energy Group Limited and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the investment holding and exploitation of coal and
coal processing. No dividend was received during the year
ended 30 June 2010. According to the latest published financial
statements of Kaisun Energy Group Limited, it had net assets
value of approximately HK$2,438,320,000.

Info Communucation Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in exhibition organisation, provision
of promotion and marketing services and trade magazines
publication. No dividend was received during the year ended 30
June 2010. According to the latest published financial statements
of Info Communication Holdings Limited, it had net assets value of
approximately HK$9,219,000.

OP Financial Investments Limited and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the investment holding in listed and unlisted
enterprises. No dividend was received during the year ended 30
June 2010. According to the latest published financial statements
of OP Financial Investments Limited, it had net assets value of
approximately HK$1,480,099,000.

Mastermind Capital Limited and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the investments in listed and unlisted companies
in Hong Kong and in other parts of the People’s Repulic of
China. No dividend was received during the year ended 30 June
2010. According to the latest published financial statements
of Mastermind Capital Limited, it had net assets value of
approximately HK$60,040,000.

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & #8184 BR 2 7

FEMBREMNE

20. BEARERBRBERNEEZMBEE

(#&)

BEE - ()

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

NMEERERERLAAREMNBATDETER
EHEEREENHNERE RERRK - WES
ERRERE  ZRit RERFEREHEE
BeRBZE-T-ZTFEANA=ZTHLEEERTE
BURETRE -RENZERERERA
AERERTR B ERR HEEFELNA
2,010,915,0003& T °

B REBERAAREMBARNEERS
REZRRBEXFERSERNT - RBE=-F
—ZFXA=1 A LLFE R EREE AR
B - REJNEEFREEERATRAHTIE
B mE  HEEFERNH2,438,320,000%

JC °

ABERERATDRAMBARDEIERERE
ZH RESE THERERENRESER -
REZE-Z-—ZEAA=ZTHLEFERLER
BEMRE - REBEABERERA A HEHT
B BBRK HEEFELNR9,219,000%

JT °©

RECBBREARATREMBATETER L
TARRFLTEEEREER -HRBE-F
—ZFXA=THLFE RIS REEM R
B -RERKEMREFRATNSTAHHE 2
B3R HEEFME X 51,480,099,0007%

JC °

EREREARQAARENBLAAETERER
ERMPEARANENEMB TN ETR
FLETRAR - RBE-FT-ZFFA=1TAHL
FEANLBUREFARE - RESEREAR
DNEBIEHT B 2P BRER  HEEFENR
60,040,000% jT °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&## @Rz o e

For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z — 2 -2 <A=THIFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(xi) Sino-Tech International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the provision of logistic service and
management service, manufacturing and trading of electronic and
electrical parts and components. No dividend was received during
the year. According to the latest published financial statements of
Sino-Tech International Holdings Limted, it had net assets value of
approximately HK$1,231,139,000.

(xii) Kingsoft Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the research, development marketing and distribution
of security software, consumer application software and
games. Total dividend of HK$9,000 was received for the year.
According to the latest published financial statements of Kingsoft
Corporation Limited, it had net assets value of approximately
HK$1,945,234,091.

(xiii

=

Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the manufacturing and trading of mobile phone
accessories, electronics technology products and the trading of
toys, premium goods. Total dividend of HK$6,600 was received for
the year. According to the latest financial statements of Hutchison
Harbour Ring Limited, it had net assets value of approximately
HK$6,228,988,000.

(xiv

-

Kingdom Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the manufacturing and sale of linen yarns and flax
fibres. No dividend was received during the year. According to the
latest financial statements of Kingdom Holdings Limited, it had net

assets value of approximately HK$721,464,773.

(xv) China Star Entertainment Limited and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the distribution of motion, pictures and
television, drama series and video rights, the provision of post-
production services and hotel services in Macau. Total dividend
of HK$413 was received during the year. According to the latest
published financial statement of China Entertainment Limited, it

had net assets value of approximately HK$2,374,517,000.
The Group has pledged the financial assets at FVTPL of

HK$56,632,226 (2009: HK$15,694,078) to secure margin
payable granted to the Group.

Annual Report 2010 £

20. EARERBERABREZHMBEE
(#&)
Bt - (&)

(xi) =LEREEERAAREMBATNEERME

TR - BERE  REREEEFRES

ZH o RAFERLEBREMARKE - RIS

LEREEERA ST 2B BERRE
HEEFENH1,231,139,000/8 T °

(xii) ELURHERAFAREMBARNETERERS
B4 HBERARGNESRGNTE B
HE R D8 o RAREE R UE9,00058 T iR
B RESILERHEERADRILETIRZME
R HEEFENS1,945,234,0918 T ©

(xiii) MR BEEERATAREMNBARNETEREF
WEG STERZBERES  URIAM
SRERES - RAFERUKES6,6005 Tk
B REMNTBERRDSARITHTIR 2T
% HEEFEH 56,228,988,000/8 T ©

(xiv) SEZRERATAREMBEATDETERERE
REBEMO B4 - RAFERILEUWEEM
BE - RESEZRERDFAZIFAETIR 8
Bk HEEFENHT21,464,7738B T ©

(xv) FEIESEEERAAREMBLARAETERSE
BE- -EBRH BR HEANE - THIREND
§5 ~ R BN RUE IR S OB PUB S BRTE - RA
FEARB413BIRE - REFEEEES
RAFRIEATE KRR HEEFED
#£2,374,517,00058 7T °

FEEEEFRAABRBKERAERE 2
B 3% & E56,632,2268 T (ZEF N F :
15,694,078 ) F AL EEERENRES
ZER -

81

CAPITAL VC LIMITED # #5813 A BR 2 #]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&## @Rz

For the year ended 30 June 2010 &2 —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21. A RE - RERHEMWEWRNKIE
RECEIVABLES
2010 2009 2008
—EB—-EF —ZEZhEF —EEN\F
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Prepayments FEHFRIE 167,028 69,611 59,015
Deposits BE 404,468 408,668 416,586
Other receivables H {th fE IR 7R 1B 67,941,513 20,353,362 16,116,799
68,513,009 20,831,641 16,592,400
Less: Impairment loss recognised B ERERREESE (9,564,235) (12,064,235) (13,364,235)
58,948,774 8,767,406 3,228,165
The movement in the impairment loss of other receivables is as HitEWRBZBEGESEBNT
follows:
2010 2009 2008
—B-2F —BEAR —EENF
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 July RntA—H 12,064,235 13,364,235 -
(Reversal) impairment loss FAE (B 'R
recognised for the year WEE R (2,500,000) (1,300,000) 13,364,235
At 30 June KAB=1+H 9,564,235 12,064,235 13,364,235
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z — 2 -2 <A=THIFE

21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Included in other receivables are the following advances to third
parties of the Group:

(a) Advance of HK$2,000,000 (2009: HK$2,000,000) to
independent third parties is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. Accumulated impairment loss of
HK$2,000,000 (2009: HK$2,000,000) was provided in the
previous years, which net off to nil outstanding amount as
at 30 June 2010. During the year ended 30 June 2010, no
additional impairment loss (2009: nil) has been recognised.

(b) Advance of HK$7,151,233 (2009: HK$6,652,233) to
independent third parties is secured by personal guarantee
from an independent third party, bears interest at 8%
(2009: 12%) per annum and repayable within one year.
Accumulated impairment loss of HK$6,200,000 (2009:
HK$6,200,000) was provided in the previous years, which
net off to an outstanding amount of HK$951,233 as at
30 June 2010. During the year ended 30 June 2010, no
additional impairment loss (2009: nil) has been recognised.

(c) Advance of HK$1,647,523 (2009: HK$3,997,386) to
independent third parties is unsecured and repayable
on demand. The loan bears interest at 8% (2009: 8%)
per annum and repayable within one year. Accumulated
impairment loss of HK$1,364,235 (2009: HK$3,864,235)
was provided in the previous years, which net off to
an outstanding amount of HK$283,288 as at 30 June
2010. During the year ended 30 June 2010, no additional
impairment loss (2009: nil) has been recognised.

(d) Interest receivables of HK$4,859,324 (2009:
HK$3,551,311), which were mainly derived from the term
loan as set out in note 18, are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. During the year ended 30 June
2010, no impairment loss (2009: nil) has been recognised.

(e) Margin receivables of HK$1,283,234 (2009: HK$3,924,485)
are generated from brokerage business, aged less than
one month and bear interest rate ranged from nil to 0.003%
(2009: 0.25% to 1.75%) per annum for the year ended 30
June 2010.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z — 2 —ZF <A=THIFE

21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(f) The outstanding balance of HK$14,000,000 due from the
purchaser of King Alliance Resources Limited (“King
Alliance”) is interest-free. Pursuant to the agreement
signed with the purchaser, the deal to sell King Alliance
was completed on 26 May 2010 and the remaining balance
is repayable by 2 installments, namely, HK$6,000,000 by
31 December 2010 and HK$8,000,000 by 30 April 2011.
As security to the Group, the interests in King Alliance
have been pledged to the Group, as such the Group is
entitled to receive dividend and all benefits accrued from
the respective shares of King Alliance until full settlement
of the remaining consideration by the purchaser. All duties
and obligations during the security period rest with the

purchaser.

(g) The outstanding balance of HK$22,000,000 due from the
purchaser of Winwide Management Limited (“Winwide”) is
interest-free. Pursuant to the agreement signed with the
purchaser, the deal to sell Winwide was completed on 30
April 2010 and the remaining balance is repayable by 2
installments, namely, HK$7,000,000 by 30 April 2011 and
HK$15,000,000 by 31 October 2011. As security to the
Group, the Group is entitled to receive dividend and all
benefits accrued from the respective shares of Winwide
until full settlement of the remaining consideration by the
purchaser. All duties and obligations during the security

period rest with the purchaser.

(h) The outstanding balance of HK$15,000,000 due from the
purchaser of Easymade Group Limited (“Easymade”) is
interest-free. Pursuant to the agreement signed with the
purchaser, the deal to sell Easymade was completed
on 30 April 2010. The remaining balance will be settled
by 3 installments, namely HK$3,000,000 by 15 October
2010, HK$6,000,000 by 31 December 2010 and another
HK$6,000,000 by 31 March 2011. As security to the Group,
the Group is entitled to receive dividend and all benefits
accrued from the respective shares of Easymade until
full settlement of the remaining consideration by the
purchaser. All duties and obligations during the security

period rest with the purchaser.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&## @Rz o e

For the year ended 30 June 2010 B2 —Z—ZF <A=THIFE i
22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM INVESTEE COMPANIES 22. BFRESREANFZNRE
As at 30 June 2010, the amount of HK$2,313,060 (2009: R-ZZB-—ZFERNA=1H EBHREZSRKRE
HK$10,255,191) is unsecured, bears interestat 8% (2009:12%) AT 2 FIE2,313,06008 T (ZEEN&F :
per annum. The amount is repayable on demand. 10,255,191) BEIKIF - K FEFIRBE (=2 F
NE12E) 5 E - ZREBARBEEERKE
E o
23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES 23. fE N BAE 1 B IR
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on EBEREAEER RERAREREEZ -
demand.
Amounts due from the related companies pursuant to Section BEEFE QTGN FE161BIEFZEWEE D T
161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as below: MIEWMT :
Maximum
balances
Interested outstanding
Name of related company director during the year 2010 2009 2008
[ NGIE RERBECEE FEABREZAEERLH —E-EF —EENF —EENE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
CNI Financial Holdings Limited Yau Chung Hong 1,100 - 1,100 1,100
BB/
CNI Securities Limited Yau Chung Hong 12,300 - 12,300 12,300
BB
CNI Consultants Limited Yau Chung Hong 450 - 450 -
BB
- 13,850 13,400
89
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24. BANK BALANCES

Bank balances comprise short-term bank deposits of
HK$26,219,940 (2009: HK$1,639,410) at prevailing market rate.

25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

(a) Other payables and accruals include HK$16,003,710 (2009:
HK$2,542,263) of margin payable which are generated
from investment in financial assets at FVTPL, aged less
than one month and bore interest rate ranged from 7.00%
to 9.25% (2009: 8.25% to 11.15%) per annum for the year
ended 30 June 2010.

(b) Other payables and accruals of HK$3,000,000 (2009:
HK$3,500,000) represented consideration payable for
acquisition of King Alliance Resources Limited. The
amount is interest-free and repayable on demand.

26. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on
demand.

27. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on
demand.

28. DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2010, the amounts represented unlisted
debentures issued to an independent third party. They are
unsecured, interest bearing at 12% per annum and repayable
within one year.

All debentures are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&#@RHizE

For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

RITEEER
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BIT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010 B2 —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

29. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

The lease term is ranging from 3 to 5 years. For the year

29

ended 30 June 2010, the average effective borrowing rate was
8.33% (2009: 5.15%) per annum. Interest rates are fixed at the
contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and
no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental
payments.

=
IS

L i o Lol s i i

ARBRRME

BMEROEE

4

.'_.-'r

HARIEFE - BEZE-BFAA=+HL
FE PHEREERSEFIBE(ZEE
AF 515E) FIZRENEHBE - 28
HEYZEEEREER L BTV HABEM

b

Minimum lease payment

Present value of

minimum lease payment

REREXGRE BREHEXAREZRE
2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008
—E-ZF ZZEZhNF ZEZEEN\F ZB-EF ZEZhF ZEZEENF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
Amounts payable under MERAT BN
finance leases: Mg
Within one year —FR 479,240 972,000 943,209 452,906 818,566 779,564
More than one year but ZR—5EF%
not more than five years REF 58,439 621,310 1,362,842 57,716 540,412 1,112,153
537,679 1,593,310 2,306,051 510,622 1,358,978 1,891,717
Less: Future finance charges i : K RIKEEH (27,057)  (234,332)  (414,334)
Present value of lease HOREZRE
obligations 510,622 1,358,978 1,891,717
Less: Amount due within AR FRER
one year shown under b 5I4E R &
current liabilities BEZHE (452,906)  (818,566)  (779,564)
Amount due after one year —ERBBEERE 57,716 540,412 1,112,153

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by
the lessor’s charge over the leased assets.

Finance leases are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&#@RHizE

For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. B
Number of shares Amount
R & B k|
HK$
BT
ORDINARY SHARES EER
Authorised: ERE
At 1 July 2008 of HK$0.01 each R-ZEENFLtA—HASR0.01ET 10,000,000,000 100,000,000
At 17 August 2008 after share R-ZEZENFENA+LH
consolidation (Note (b)) 10 & Bt & (K12 (b)) 5,000,000,000 100,000,000
At 13 February 2009 after share R=ZBZEAF-A+=H
consolidation (Note (c)) BB & 0HE (B3 (c)) 1,000,000,000 100,000,000
At 30 June 2009 of HK$0.1 each R-ZZEZENFARA=1+H
BR0.18 T 1,000,000,000 100,000,000
Increase during the year FRENEREE1E T
at HK$0.1 each (Note (f) (B3E() 1,000,000,000 100,000,000
At 30 June 2010 of HK$0.1 each R-ZE-—ZFF~A=1+H
BRR0.18B T 2,000,000,000 200,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
at 1 July 2008 at HK$0.01 each RZZEZENFLHA—HASR0.01EBT 1,232,345,454 12,323,454
Issue of shares by rights issue DR E X BTRE
at HK$0.01 each (Note (a)) F20.0138 5T (K it (a)) 616,172,727 6,161,727
1,848,518,181 18,485,181
At 17 August 2008 after share R-ZEZENENA+LtAH
consolidation (Note (b)) R 15 & Gt& (B2 (b)) 924,259,089 18,485,181
Issue of shares by placement DR AN BTRSG
at HK$0.02 each &820.0278 T 150,150,000 3,003,000
1,074,409,089 21,488,181
At 13 February 2009 after share R-ZEZENF=-A+=H
consolidation (Note (c)) Iz 13 & Bt & (B3t (c)) 214,881,817 21,488,181
Issue of shares by placement DEERXNBTRHG
at HK$0.1 each (Note (d)) SHR0.158 7T (A132(d)) 6,940,363 694,037
Exercise of conversion rights TEBRRES LBRE
at HK$0.1 each BR0.1B T 35,999,997 3,600,000
At 30 June 2009 at HK$0.1 each REZZBEZBNNFANA=1H 257,822,177 25,782,218
Issue of shares by placement DUt ig 5 &7 R0
at HK$0.1 each (Note (f)) S IR0.18 T (BEE(1) 51,560,000 5,156,000
Issue of shares upon exercise of share {THEREFR0.1EB T
option at HK$0.1 each (Note (g)) (Hat(g)) 5,700,000 570,000
At 30 June 2010 at HK$0.1 each RZE—ZFAA=1+HERKR0.1ET 315,082,177 31,508,218

CAPITAL VC LIMITED # #B&I# A BR 2 #]

Annual Report 2010 % &



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010 &2 — 2 —ZF <A=THIFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

()

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an extraordinary
general meeting on 17 July 2008, 616,172,727 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued and allotted at a price of HK$0.05 on 7
August 2008 as fully paid by way of a rights issue on the basis of
one for two existing shares. The rights shares rank pari passu in

all respects with the then existing shares.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an extraordinary
general meeting held on 17 July 2008, ordinary shares of the
Company of every 2 shares of HK$0.01 each were consolidated
into 1 share of HK$0.02 each.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an extraordinary
general meeting held on 13 February 2009, ordinary shares of the
Company of every 5 shares of HK$0.02 each were consolidated
into 1 share of HK$0.10 each.

Pursuant to a placing agreement signed on 16 June 2009,
6,940,363 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were placed at
HK$0.315 per share which issued and allotted on 23 June 2009 to
Mr. Wong Kwong Sing, an independent third party.

By an ordinary resolution passed at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 2 October 2009, the Company’s authorised
ordinary share capital was increased from HK$100,000,000 to
HK$200,000,000 by the creation of an additional 1,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each, ranking pari 200,000,000 passsu

with the existing ordinary shares of the Company in all respect.

Pursuant to a placing agreement signed on 27 November 2009,
51,560,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were placed at
HK$0.24 per share on 16 December 2009. 51,560,000 share
were issued and allotted to not fewer than 6 placees, comprising
institutional and individual investors who are third parties

Independent of and not connected with the Group.

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe for 5,700,000
ordinary shares in the Company of HK$0.1 each, resulting in a total
cash consideration of HK$2,451,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(a) Scheme

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on 30
September 2003 (the “Adoption Date”), the directors of
the Company may, at their absolute discretion, invite any
employee (whether full-time or part time, including any
executive director), any non-executive director (including
independent non-executive directors), any supplier of
goods or services, any customer and any person or entity
that provides research, development or other technological
support to the Group to the maximum of 10% of the shares
in issue as at the date of commencement of listing of
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange and subject
to renewal with shareholders’ approval.

The Scheme became unconditional upon the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from the Adoption Date.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options to any eligible participant in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted must not
represent more than 10% of the nominal amount of all the
issued shares of the Company (the “10% Limit”) as at the
date on which trading in the shares of the Company on
the Stock Exchange first commenced. The Company may
seek approval from its shareholders in a general meeting
to refresh the 10% Limit at any time in accordance with
the Listing Rules. The maximum number of unexercised
share options currently permitted to be granted under the
Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to
30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to
time.
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LR - BEEEREZENFREZKR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&## @Rz -

For the year ended 30 June 2010 #E =2 -2 A=THILEE -

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
(a) Scheme (Continued)

31. BR#EHE (|
(a) —I'_J (%&)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, are subject to the approval of
the independent non-executive directors (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is a proposed
grantee of the share options). In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or
any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject
to the shareholders’ approval in a general meeting in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

The offer of a grant of share options shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of 28 days from the date of the
offer of the grant. The grant of share options is effective
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the grantee. The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the directors, but may not be less than
the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant of the share options, which must be a
trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the share options; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares.

Further details of the Scheme are disclosed in the
prospectus of the Company dated 8 October 2003.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&#@RHzE

For the year ended 30 June 2010 &2 —Z—ZF < A=THIFE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
(b) Options granted

Summary of the share options granted is as follows:

(i) Movements in share options

1. BRESE @)
(b) Rz BKHE
BHzBRESENT :

() BREzZH

2010 2009
—E-FF —EEBhEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Number of share options BREEE
At 1 July BtA—H - —
Granted 2R 19,000,000 =
Exercised 217 (5,700,000) =
At 30 June BAB=+H 13,300,000 -
(ii) Details of the share options granted during the year (i) "EEERBZ2BREFES
Number of share Exercise Fair value at
Date of grant Exercisable period options granted price date of grant
R HH 1T EEHABR ERHECEREHE ESRITEE REBBHZLOAE
HK$ HK$
BT -
4 May 2010 4 May 2010 — 3 May 2013 5,700,000 0.430 0.021
—E-ZTF —E-ZEFRAMA-
AAMA —E-=FRHA=H
18 May 2010 18 May 2010 — 17 May 2013 5,700,000 0.480 0.154
—E-ZF —E-ZFFEA+NHE-
HA+NH —E—=FFHA+tAH
26 May 2010 26 May 2010 - 25 May 2013 7,600,000 0.422 0.050
—E-FF —ZE-FTFRA=-+ARB-
BAZ=+XAH —E-=%FEAZ-+EHH

The average fair value of the share options granted during
the year is HK$0.073 each. Options were priced using
the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. As it requires
the input of highly subjective assumptions, including
the volatility of share prices, changes in subjective input

REARENBREAABEATHYSE
f20.0738 T - BREFRAN I Z —5FH
THHREEEREXEE BeERBAS
EXHNESR  BEREESAEEIE
THRAABRSNEBUREEAZEAIR

assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate.

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
of the share prices of the Company over a period that is
equal to the expected life before the grant date.

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & #8184 FR 2\ 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&# @Rzt . ¥

For the year ended 30 June 2010 B#E-T—ZE A=+ BILFE N
31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 31. BRERE &)
(b) Options granted (Continued) (b) RHEZERE (&)
The vesting period of the share options is from the date BRENSEBHAREZ BB HET
of grant until the commencement of the exercise period. fEHABALR - BERIRAERITEHIREG » AL
The share options would be fully exercisable from the 2T

commencement of the exercise period.

The fair value of the shares options granted in the RERBHEREN D REUAE DR -5
year as determined by using the Black-Scholes Option BHHEEEERE - 891,369,975/8
pricing model was approximately HK$1,369,975 of which Tt BH1,369,975B TR EREHERAE
approximately HK$1,369,975 was recognised in the profit B1E o

of loss for the year.

32. NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE 2. BREEFE
The calculation of net asset value is based on the net asset BREEFEDRELAEENR-Z—ZF<A
value of the Group as at 30 June 2010 of HK$317,398,875 (2009 =+HZEEFE317,398,8758 T (ZEF
restated: HK$261,937,198) and on the number of 315,082,177 FE5 261,937,198 BT RR-E—FFE X
(2009: 257,822,177) ordinary shares in issue as at 30 June B=+THER{TEERHEE315,082,177/&% (=
2010. ST NEF 1 257,822,177 ) 5t & ©

33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 3.HEHE A A
The Group has not disposed of any of its subsidiaries during REAEER AEFETEHEETZHEL
the year. G
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&##@RHzE

For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

34. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY A FAEALTRBAERS
TRANSACTIONS
(a) During the year, the Group entered into the following (a) RAFER  AEEHEBEATREES
transactions with related parties and connected parties: EITZRXZWMT :
2010 2009
—E-EF —EEAF
Notes HKS$ HK$
e BT BT
Tripod Management Limited REREEEBRAA
(“Tripod”) Te&])
Investment management ENREEESE
fee paid i 480,000 958,195
Orbrich Finance Group Limited Orbrich Finance Group Limited
(“Orbrich Finance”) (F'Orbrich Finance )
Interest income from FE U A ii 608,013 1,226,400
Winwide Winwide
Interest income from FE WA iii - 100,000
Service fee received 2R RS & iii - 30,000
QF Alpha (Hong Kong) Limited QF Alpha (Hong Kong) Limited
Professional service income BHERKBA
(Included in net sundry (BEEREEBEWRAFE)
income) iv 460,000 -
Disposal of motor vehicle HERE iv 287,796 =

China Private Equity Investment BEHEREZERERAR
Holdings Limited

Professional service income HERZE WA
(Included in net sundry (BIEEMEWRAFE)
income) iv 720,000 -
Chiu & Partners A e EERENEIEA
Legal fees paid B EREEH v - 92,300
Athens Capital Limited EHEARBRAA
Professional Service fees paid ENEEREER Vi 90,000 =
Share issue expenses ENBTREER vi 230,000 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010 B2 —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

34. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties as at the end of

the reporting period are as follows:

Mr. Chui Tak Keung, Duncan,
an executive director of the
Company (“Mr. Chui”)
Amount due to

Mr. Yau Chung Hong,
an executive director of the
Company (“Mr. Yau”)
Amount due to

CNI Securities Limited
Amount due from

CNI Financial Holdings Limited
Amount due from

CNI Assets Management
Limited
(“CNI Asset”)
Amount due to

Quidam
Loan advance to

IIN Network
Amount due from

Orbrich Finance
Loan advance to
Amount due from

UCCTV
Amount due from

Winwide

Amount due from

Chiu & Partners
Amount due to

Annual Report 2010 £ #§

RRABZHMITES
wEmiLE
(T&rEED
FEFRIR

RABRZHITES
EEMEE
TExXED
P&+ =038

CNI Securities Limited
B W k18

CNI Financial Holdings Limited
FE Wk T8

CNI Assets Management
Limited
(TCNI Asset )
AT RRIE

Quidam

FrE 25K

IIN Network
FE W 5k 18

Orbrich Finance
FriE# 3R
FE R kIR

UCCTV
FE W KR

Winwide

W FR1E

H A o FEIREMBBH
FE S 5K

BEATRBEERS (&)
BEZHEAH
T :
2010
—E-FF
Notes HK$
BraE BT
vii 698,300
viii 43,584
ix -
iX -
ix -
X 10,000,000
Xi -
i 220,000
i 170,361
Xii 1,001,808
iii -
vii -

FeUHRRNEE

HEESNAREEGRRN

2009
—2BAE
HK$

5

45,000

104,258

12,300

1,100

20,000

10,000,000

410,184

6,220,000
170,361

2,889,710

364,936

282,200 99
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #

For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

34. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties as at the end of

the reporting period are as follows: (Continued)

Notes:

(1)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

Pursuant to investment management agreement dated 17
May 2007 entered into between the Company and Tripod,
Tripod agreed to provide the Company with investment
management services (excluding general administrative
services) commencing on 17 May 2007.

The Group had 18.25% equity interest in Quidam which holds
84% equity interest in Orbrich Finance at 30 June 2010. The
loan is unsecured, bears interest at 8% per annum for the
period from 1 July 2009 to 30 June 2010. The amount due is
unsecured, Interest-free and repayable on demand.

The Group had 18% equity interest in Winwide before the
disposal. The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Mr. Chui had beneficial interests in these companies.
Professional service income from these companies was
charged at a negotiated value.

Mr. Ma Kwok Keung, Kenneth, non-executive director of
the Company (retired on 26 November 2009) has beneficial
interests in Chiu & Partners. The amount due to Chiu &
Partner is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Mr. Yau had beneficial interests in the Company.
Professional service fees and share issue expenses paid to
the party was charged at a negotiated value.

The amount due to Mr. Chui is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

The amount due to Mr. Yau is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Mr. Yau had beneficial interests in these companies. The
amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

The Group had 18.25% equity interest in Quidam at 30 June
2010. The term loan is unsecured, bears interest at 8% per
annum and repayable on 30 June 2011.

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & #8184 FR 2 7

ARBRRME

4. FHAEALTRBAERS (®)

(b) BZE
T:

HER HBEEDNREBESRN
(%)

(1)

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

BREARAFHERER—_TZLFHA+L
ARV 2REEEHS  SEREHA=
ZTLFRATERBAARARMHR
BEBERE (—RITBRBERI) -

R-ZZ-ZEXNA=1H0 AEEEE
Quidamz18.25% 8% # + 1 QuidamizH
Orbrich FinanceZ84%R# - BB E R
REEKF R-ZTAFLtA-—BE=
Z-ZFERAZTHHBRFERNESE
FE-BEREBREER  RERER
EREIE -

HERAREEIEEWinwide Z18% MR & o
ERAREARER REREBERERE
;% °

BRELBEEZS QR 2EHE - WEERQ
AZEXRBUARZEETEH -

RARFHTESFERLE (R=FF
NE+-—AZ+ABRE) BEREEHET
A BRI BB s - BEBET
e BEREM BB 2 RIAREIKA -
RERARERER -

EXEREEZERR 2EE - XTZE
RAZEXERBEARBITROBAZIR
BEEHE -

BRGEERARER  LERARE
REE -

ENEXECRERBER RERE
BEREE-

EXLEBRBERERS AR 2 EE - ZE
RERBER RERAREREE -

R-ZE-ZEXA=1H  ~&EEEE
QuidamZ18.25% K i - EHERHE
EH REMNRSEFERER=-Z——
FRA=tHEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&## @Rz b

For the year ended 30 June 2010 B2 —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

34. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Outstanding balances with related parties as at the end of
the reporting period are as follows: (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(xi) The Group had 15% equity interest in IIN Network at 30
June 2010. The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

(xii) The Group had 20% equity interest in UCCTV as at 30
June 2010. The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

P PRETTREE yrre—

Ly

g F

T—

.'_.-'r

4. FHAEALTRBAERS (®)

(b) BEHER HEELNRERESHIRN

T : (&)
K&z o (&)

xi)y R=ZZBE—ZFFEXA=1+H FAE@EHE
1IN Network 2 15% % # o 45 8 FE {J 7% 18
AEEE RERERERER-

(xii)y R=ZEBE—FEXA=1+H KxEEEE
UCCTVZ20%M & - BT X IE A &K
B RERAREREE-

(c) EEEBAEZHME
FENTEEBEAECHME  ESKRHEM
TEEEEREZMENT :

2010 2009

—E-EF —EZAE

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Short-term benefits 55 B %R A 2,792,065 3,402,000
Post-employment benefits BEEEA 24,000 24,000
2,816,065 3,426,000

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors,
the above related party transactions were entered into in
the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business on
normal commercial terms and were in accordance with
the terms of the arrangements governing the transactions
that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&##@RHzE

For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

35. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 35. REHENERE
The Group as lessee rEBEREBRA
The Group leases certain of its offices under operating lease RELLEANTH  AEEHEETETHA
arrangements. Leases are negotiated for a term of two years. o HEABKHREAME

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments HEH  NEBERT BB ER 2T o #HE
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable KREHRNERRZREHESHRIEDT
operating leases which fall due as follows:

P

2010 2009
—E-FfF —EEhEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within one year —FRr 1,100,000 1,200,000
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEEELF(BEEEWMSE) - 1,100,000
1,100,000 2,300,000
Lease for rented premise are negotiated for an average of two HEMEENBRBZEAFHIWE > MES
years and rental are fixed for an average of two years. EHEE R E ©
36. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 36. HHEE
As at 30 June 2010, the Group had pledged the following RZZB-Z2FXA=TH  xEEEBTIE
assets to secure the finance leases, debenture issued by EFEARLATRMERY  IRTEREREN
the Company and the margin payables: REBES KW
2010 2009
—E-FF —EEhEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Plant and equipment (Note 16) W ER®&E (KEE16) 451,269 1,544,440
Available-for-sale investments At ERE (FE19)
(Note 19) - 57,992,368
Financial assets at FVTPL BRARBERREERAEREZ
(Note 20) B i & &= (Btit20) 56,632,226 15,694,078
57,083,495 75,230,886
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 B2 —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

37.

38.

39.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution MPF Scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employee’s basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income statement
of approximately HK$51,220 (2009: HK$103,091) represents
contributions payable to the schemes by the Group in respect
of the current financial year.

CORRECTION OF PRIOR PERIOD ERRORS
During the year, the Company discovered that the share of
results of an associate in the Group’s consolidated financial
statement for the year ended 30 June 2009 was understated by
HK$12,604,313. The understatement was due to the difference
between the management accounts and the audited financial
statements of the associate. The comparative figures have been
restated to correct the error.

The effect of correcting the error have resulted in:

(1) an increase in share of results of an associate of
HK$12,604,313;

(2) a decrease in loss for the year and accumulated loss of
HK$12,604,313; and

(3) an increase in interest in an associate of HK$12,604,313
for the year ended 30 June 2009.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(a) The debenture outstanding at the end of the reporting
period of HK$1,000,000 (note 28) was subsequently settled
in September 2010.

(b) Subsequent to the year end, approximately HK$4,500,000
of the interest receivables derived from term loans as set
out in note 18 have been received.
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37.

38.

39.
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(1) FE{hEEE D REEN 12,604,313 7T ;
(2) ZEEEBERZETEIERA12,604,313%8

B) BE=ZZENFARA=ZTHLFEREK
ENR 2 EHIEIMN12,604,3138 T °

HERRER

(a) MAEE R AREE#1,000,00058 5T EHE
& (BRE28) ER =25 N AHE
-

o

(b) REERE BREHER (BRKE
18) % £.494,500,00078 T & B H UK E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z —Z—ZF <A=THIFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

FR B RERMT

40. B BB AR &R

COMPANY
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Non-current assets kREBEE
Plant and equipment B K& 516,365 845,996
Interests in subsidiaries NN X 156 156
516,521 846,152
Current assets TREEE
Available-for-sale investment AEHERE 32,695,740 34,101,760
Financial assets at fair value EAAREBERRERA
through profit or loss BEECHKEE 15,411,101 510,924
Prepayments, deposits and FENRIE - Rek HithEWKIE
other receivables 1,556,884 1,004,886
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE UK B B 2 B 7R IE 147,743,433 157,720,810
Amount due from an investee EWEZRE QN RRIE
company 1,001,808 2,889,710
Amounts due from related companies FEUR B8 3E 1\ B FRIE - 12,850
Bank balances SRITHEER 15,117,850 1,583,329
213,526,816 197,824,269
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accruals HENREREGTER 5,166,479 3,062,055
Amounts due to directors EAEERE 698,298 44,900
Amount due to an investee company BHESREATRE - 746,244
Amounts due to related companies EAREE LN T FIE - 282,200
Debentures BRER 1,000,000 11,000,000
6,864,777 15,135,399
Net current assets RBEEFE 206,662,039 182,688,870
207,178,560 183,535,022
Capital and reserves EARKF#HE
Share capital (&N 31,508,218 25,782,218
Reserves 1 175,670,342 157,752,804
Total equity attributable to equity KATREFEARGEREEH
holders of the Company 207,178,560 183,535,022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&afissafz o\ *l‘i

For the year ended 30 June 2010 B#E=-T—TF A=1THILFE T

41. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 41. X AR
Investment
Share Share option  revaluation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
K RE BRERE REEH[ES R BR @zt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT B BT
At 1 July 2008 RZEENELA-H 188,055,355 - 2,902,901 (62,303,713) 128,654,543
Loss and total recognised expenses AEEFERCEALHEE
for the year (as restated) - - - (4,602,533) (4,602,533)
Loss on fair value changes of available- ~ REREEBIz THEERE
for-sale investments and total income REHBBz DAERH 2 K
recognised directly in equity (Note 19) (Hit19) - - 1,198,859 - 1,198,859
Issue of ordinary shares by right issues DERARBTEBR
(Note 30(a)) (H330(2) 24,646,909 - . - 24,646,000
Issue of ordinary shares by placing NREARBTEBR 5,245,928 - - = 5,245,928
Exercise of conversion right TETRARES L ER 4,500,000 = = = 4,500,000
Share issue expenses RARTER (1,890,902) = = = (1,890,902)
At 30 June 2009 RZEENFAA=TH 220,557,290 - 4,101,760 (66,906,246) 157,752,804
At 1 July 2009 RZEENELHB-H 220,557,290 - 4,101,760 (66,906,246) 157,752,804
Profit and total recognised income FEERARCRANRLH
for the year - - - 9,448,811 9,448,811
Gain on fair value changes of available- ~ THHEREAR
for-sale investments (Note 19) 2B BN H19) - - (1,406,020) - (1,406,020)
Share option scheme: IR A
- value of service -REERE - 1,369,976 - - 1,369,976
- proceeds from share issued -BRAIRHBHAENE 1,881,000 = = = 1,881,000
- transfer to share premium -ERARNDEE 116,917 (116,917) - - -
Issue of ordinary shares by placing NRERXBTERR
(Note 30(f)) (3230 7,218,400 - - - 7,218,400
Share issue expenses RARTER (594,629) - - - (594,629)
At 30 June 2010 RZE-BEXB=1H 229,178,978 1,253,059 2,695,740 (57,457,435) 175,670,342
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&# @Rz

For the year ended 30 June 2010 ##Z — 2 —ZF <A=THIFE

42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Company as at

30 June 2010 are as follows:

Name

£

CNI Finance Limited

Concolor Holdings Limited

Richbird Holdings Limited

Kendervon Profit Inc.

Ethnocentric Investment Limited

CNI Capital Limited

Kenabell Trading Limited

Million Full Assets Limited

Class of
shares held

Fir R 40 5

Ordinary
EER

Ordinary

HER

Ordinary
HER

Ordinary
EER

Ordinary
EBR

Ordinary
EBR

Ordinary
EER

Ordinary
EER

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & #8184 FR 2\ 7

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
EMREL/
BRREXLE

Hong Kong
B

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
REBELEE/BE

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
REELES/ B

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
RRELEE/BE

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
RERLHE/BE

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
ARELHE/ B

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
REBELEE/BE

42. TEHMB A

Nominal value
of issued share
and fully paid

share capital
BRTROK
BRRAEE

HK$100
10078 7T

USs$1
1%7%

Us$1

1%7%

Us$1

127

US$1

1%

HK$3
3BT

Us$1

1%7%

US$1

(ES

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company

KRR EMR

REBDL
Directly

Hi

Indirectly
&

100% -

100% -

100% -

100% -

100% -

- 100%

100% -

100% -

R-ZZ2-ZFFXA=1H  ARAMBFEZE
EMBEARZHBUT ¢

Principal activities

TEXH

Investment holding

REER
Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investments of listed
securities in Hong Kong

RERE B2 RS

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REZR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&&# @Rz o e

For the year ended 30 June 2010 #E -2 —TF < <A=THIFE Ko v
42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 42. T EM B 2 7 (&)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in ERINHEARTESRAEFTEZEREEHEE
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected REEZHBLAR - EERAILEMMBEL
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other AEE BSEERBEENE -

subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding as NELKLEERTAERE  HMEMBATES
at the end of the year or at any time during the year. R BT Z2ERES -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BERE

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the AEERBERERVERRZ2BERTEAGHREE 2
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited EHR¥EE EEHEEMERINOT :
financial statements, is set out as follows:

RESULTS

Turnover

E 3]

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E-2F ZEEZNE ZEBENE ZEBTLE ZEERE
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B BT B
(Restated)’
(&%)
21,201,261 (5,550,573)  (2,028,359) 9,442,832 760,053

Profit (loss) before tax

BRBATRR (B8)

35,508,758 (2,352,846) (22,999,435) 1,127,349 11,858,413

Income tax s 461,433 - (443,250) (136,884) (450,000)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable ARAERERR
to equity holders of the Company FEEREERA(FE)  35970,191  (2,352,846) (23,442,685) 990,465 11,408,413
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHERE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
ZE-2F CZE2TRE ZTENF ZBELE CZ2ERE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
(Restated)*
(&%)~
Total assets BEE 355,964,956 284,904,665 262,885,489 153,000,035 86,467,322
Total liabilities meE (38,566,081) (22,967,467) (32,015,075) (35,697,961)  (7,453,077)
Total equity attributable to equity EATRERFEA
holders of the Company FElhER A 317,398,875 261,937,198 230,870,414 117,302,074 79,014,245

* (Adjusted to reflect the prior period errors)
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